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January 13, 2017

Luly Massaro,

Clerk of The Division of Public Utilities and Carriers
89 Jefferson Boulevard

Warwick, RI 02888

RE: Application of Providence Water for Authority to Borrow up to
$17.000,000 from the RICWFA Docket No. D-17-

Dear Ms, Massaro:

Enclosed for filing are an original and four copies of Providence Water’s request for
authority to borrow up to $17,000,000 from the RI Infrastructure Bank.

The enclosed application does not include the Department of Health’s rules and
regulations for the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund or the RI Infrastructure
Bank Ioan policies and procedures. However, we will provide these items if the
Division so advises.

Providence Water respectfully requests an expedited review of the enclosed

application, If you have any questions, contact me at 521-6300 ext.7238, or our
Attorney Michael McElroy, Esq., at 351-4100.

Providence Water Supply Board

(i AL dana L0

ancy I;/Parriffo
enior Manager of Finance

ce: R. Caruolo
G. Giasson
P. Pallozzi
M. Deignan-White
T. Massaro
M. Gurghigian
K. Grande, Esq.
M. McElroy, Esq.
L. Wold, Esq.
File
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Application for Authority to Borrow from the Rhode Island Infrastructure Bank in an amount
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STATE OF RHODE ISLAND
DIVISION OF PUBLIC UTILITIES AND CARRIERS

IN RE: PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD DOCKET NO. D-17-__

RLG.L. § 39-3-15
APPLICATION OF THE PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
FOR AUTHORITY TO BORROW FROM
THE RHODE ISLAND INFRASTRUCTURE BANK

In the above-entitled cause, the Providence Water Supply Board represents that:

1.

Providence Water was created in 1940 by Chapter 832 of the Public Laws of the State of
Rhode Island.

Providence Water seeks to borrow from the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund up to
$17,000,000 primarily to clean, line and/or replace water mains at an interest rate not 1o
exceed 4.5%.

The borrowing will be provided by the RI Infrastructure Bank, pursuant to a resolution of
the Providence Water Supply Board dated April 20, 2016.

The loan will be secured by the Providence Water Enterprise Fund Revenues under the
Providence Water Supply Board Bond Indenture.

The borrowing may reimburse Providence Water for project costs incurred from
inception of the project until actual funding date.

In accordance with Section 14 of the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the Division of
Public Utilities and Carriers, written testimony and supporting exhibits are attached
hereto, including the written testimony of Gregg Giasson P.E, Nancy Parrillo, and
Maureen Gurghigian of First Southwest.

In accordance with Section 14 of the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the Division of
Public Utilities and Carriers, a copy of this application has been filed with the Attorney
General.

WHEREFORE, the Providence Water Supply Board respectfully requests that the

Division of Public Utilities and Carriers authorize and consent to Providence Water borrowing
up to $17,000,000 from the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund. - - — - —




PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD

BY<: Cf P

Ricky Caruolor
GENERAL MANAGER
STATE OF RHODE ISLAND
COUNTY OF PROVIDENCE
™
Subscribed and sworn before me this _3_?__ day of January, 2017.
0 A
Notary Public
:fee.:espia {J Muﬁf rr U _
My Commissw/é' gxpires: %715
Leg S y¥s {)




STATE OF RHODE ISLAND AND PROVIDENCE PLANTATIONS
DIVISION OF PUBLIC UTILITIES AND CARRIERS

IN RE: PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD : Docket No. D-17-
APPLICATION FOR BORROWING AUTHORITY

NOTICE OF FILING AND PUBLIC HEARING

Pursuant to the provisions of the RI.G.L §39-3-15 and §39-3-17, the Division of Public

r

Utilities and Carriers (the “Division”™) will conduct a public hearing on

at in a hearing room of the Division of Public

Utilities and Carriers, located at 89 Jefferson Boulevard, Warwick, Rhode Island. The hearing
may continue thereafter from day to day and time to time as required.

At this hearing, the Division will consider the propriety of an application filed by the
Providence Water Supply Board seeking consent and approval to obtain financing in the amount
of up to $17 million through revenue bonds to be sold by RI Infrastructure Bank for the Rhode
Island Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund. The proceeds from the sale of the bonds will
be used to ciéan, line, and/or replace water mains located throughout the Providence Water
distribution system.

The application is on file and may be examined at the office of the Division and at the
office of the Providence Water Supply Board, 552 Academy Avenue, Providence, Rhode Island.

Reference is also made to Chapters 39-1, 39-3 and -42-35l0f the Rhode Isiand General
Laws; specifically Sections 39-1-7, 39-1-8, 39-1-11, 39-1-12, 39-1-16, 39-1-18, 39-1-20, 39-3-
15, 39-3-17, 42-35-8, and 42-35-10. The Division of Public Utilities and Carriers is accessible
to the handicapped. Individuals requesting interpreter services for the hearing impaired must
notify the Cletk’s office at 780-2107 seventy-two hours in advance of hearing date.

Macky McCleary, Administrator

,2017




Certificate of Service

[ hereby certify that a true copy of the Application of the Providence Water Supply Board
for Authority to borrow from the RI Infrastructure Bank in an amount of $17,000,000, with all
supporting documentation, was mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the Attorney
General, State of Rhode Island, 150 South Main Street, Providence, RT 02903, Attention: Leo
Wold, Esq., Chief of the Regulatory Unit, on January 20_, 2017.

N ™ ,
Mary L. Deignan-White

Senior Manager of Regulatory

552 Academy Avenue

Providence, RI 02908

401-521-6300 Ext.7217
MaryDW@Provwater.com




STATE OF RHODE ISLAND
DIVISION OF PUBLIC UTILITIES AND
CARRIERS
IN RE: PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD DOCKET NO. D-17-

STATEMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH R.LG.L. § 39-3-17

Xaykham Khamsyvoravong, Chairman, and Carissa R. Richard, Secretary,
Providence Water Supply Board. after being duly sworn, hereby make the following
statement in accordance with R.I.G.L. § 39-3-17:

1. Providence Water Supply Board has filed with the Rhode Island
Division of Public Utilities and Carriers an Application to Borrow from
the Rhode Island Infrastructure Bank in the amount of up to Seventeen

Million dollars {$17,000,000).

2. The debt will be incurred primarily for the purpose of cleaning, lining and/or
replacing water mains within the system.

3. The total estimated project costs including cost of issuance, loan origination, etc.,
that will be borrowed are not to exceed Seventeen Million dollars ($17,000.000).

4, Attached hereto is the latest Audited Financial Statement of the Providence Water
Supply Board, showing the assets and liabilities of the utility.

Vothoon Nm,m‘:%\/@/ta% OCUWLU\ %%MM@Q

Xaykchﬁm Khamsyvoravong, Chairman Carissa R. Richard, Secretary

STATE OF RHODE ISLAND
COUNTY OF PROVIDENCE

+h
Subscribed and sworn before me this | g day of January, 2017.

g Notary P

My Commission Expmes / /




PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD

Testimony of Nancy E. Parrillo
Before the
RI Division of Public Utilities and Carriers
In support of Providence Water Supply Board’s
APPLICATION FOR AUTHORIZATION TO BORROW UP TO

$17,000,000 FROM THE
RHODE ISLAND INFRASTRUCTURE BANK

January, 2017
Docket No. D-17-
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Providence Water Supply Board
Testimony of

Nancy E. Parrillo

Please state your full name and title.

Nancy E. Parrillo, Senior Manager for the Providence Water Supply Board (Providence
Water).

How long have you been employed at Providence Water?

I have been employed at Providence Water since April 2013.

Please describe your education and work experience.

I graduated from Wheaton College with a Bachelor of Arts Degree with a major in
Economics, and from Bryant University with a Masters of Business Administration
Degree, majoring in Finance. I recently was employed as the Chief Financial Officer of
the Rhode Island Turnpike and Bridge Authority. Prior to that, I was employed by Tatum
LLC, a financial services consultant for four and one half (4 %2) years. I also served as
Chief Financial Officer of the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust, the
Massachusetts State Revolving Fund, from 1999 to 2005, and I served as Chief Financial
Officer for the South Essex Sewerage District from 1994 to 1999.

What is the purpose of your testimony?

To provide information in support of Providence Water’s application to borrow up to $17
million from the Rhode Island Infrastructure Bank (RIIB). The funds will be used to
continue Providence Water’s work on improvements to our distribution system and
appurtenances, focusing on cleaning, relining, repair and replacement of water mains,

transmission lines, service lines and valves, and related expenses throughout the
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Providence Water system in accordance with our agreement with the RI Department of
Health (RIDOH).

Is this amount sufficient to cover the construction costs?

This amount of $17 million is estimated to bé sufficient to cover the construction costs for
this portion of the project as well as the cost of issuance, origination fee to the RIIB, and
required debt service reserve fund. Based on the estimated proforma debt service schedules
that were calculated based on current market factors (see Exhibit 4), we are estimating a
total principal amount of $16,399,200. However, this amount is subject to change at the
time the bonds are sold and we need to be sure we net the appropriate construction fund
amount, so we are seeking authority to borrow up to $17 million.

What is the sourece of funds for payment of the debt service?

In order to pay the debt service, Providence Water has requested a revenue increase of
approximately $1,400,000 as part of Providence Water’s overall rate increase (Docket
4618) currently pending with the PUC.

What will be the impact to ratepayers from this borrowing?

The increase will impact all customers. In the current filing pending before the
Commission, the overall requested revenue increase to our cost of services is 11.6% or
$7,911,953. The $1.4 million needed to cover the debt service is 17.7% of the new revenue,
This will be allocated to all customers — retail, wholesale, and fire service - based on the
rate design and cost allocators developed in this current rate filing and approved by the
Commission.

Have you addressed the requirements of RIGL 39-3-17 regarding the approval of the

financing by the Providence Water Board and the City of Providence?
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Yes, attached as Exhibit Iis a Certificate of the Secretary of the Providence Water Supply
Board stating that at the April 20, 2016 Board Mesting, the Board authorized the General
Manager to seek approval of the Providence City Council for financing from the RI
Infrastructure Bank for an amount not to exceed $18 million. Also, attached as Exhibit II,
is an ordinance approved by the City on August 3, 2016 that authorizes the botrowing from

the RI Infrastructure Bank for an amount not to exceed $18 million.

issnance as required by Section 14 of the Rules of Practice and Procedure of the
Division?

Yes, a present and proforma capital structure showing the effects of the bond issue is shown
at Exhibit III. Our projected debt to net property, plant and equipment (“debt to plant™)
with this issue would be 39.88% (This percentage will change with asset values capitalized
at year end). Our financial advisor has indicated that rating agencies consider a ratio of
debt to plant less than 40% to be low and of 40% to 60% to be moderate.

How will the proceeds of the bond be utilized?

As shown on Exhibit IV, page 2, the estimated $16.4 million of available bond proceeds
will be applied to:

~ $1,172,794.36 will be deposited with the trustee for a debt reserve fund; this represents
one’s year’s debt service cost.

~ A 1% loan origination fee of $163,992 will be paid to RI Infrastructure Bank.

~ An estimated $62,413.64 will be paid for costs of issuance incurred by Providence Water;

this includes legal, rating and financial consulting fees.
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~The remaining funds totaling approximately $15 milfion will be available for funding the

work to be performed.

These numbers are subject to change on the date of the sale, but these are close estimates

assuming the market is approximately the same as it is today.

The issuance of the bonds by RI Infrastructure Bank is anticipated in early spring of 2017.

What are the terms of the financing?

The bonds will be issued under the Trust Indenture dated March 5, 2008. There will be a

Supplemental Indenture issued which relates to these bonds, In this filing, Maureen

Gurghigian, our financial consultant with FirstSouthwest, a division of Hilltop Securities,

Inc. provides testimony and additional information on the bond issuance and debt service

requirements. The general terms of the borrowing are:

~ An estimated $16.4 million, 20-year term borrowing through the RI Infrastructure Bank.

~ Bonds will be funded through the Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SDWSRF)
and will have an interest rate subsidy of 25%.

~ Thé interest rate of the loan will be based on Providence Water’s AA- rating, less a 25%
discount. An annual administrative fee of .5% of the outstanding loan balance will
be paid to RI Infrastructure Bank. The estimated effective interest rate is
approximately 2.848%. The projected interest rate does not include the .5% annual
administrative fee of RI Infrastructure Bank [See Exhibit IV, page 2.] |

~ One year’s debt service cost (approximately $1,172,794.36) will be deposited to a Debt

Service Reserve Fund from the proceeds of the borrowing.
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~ There must be sufficient annual net revenues for each of the three full fiscal years
following the issuance of the bonds to provide for 125% of the debt service
requirements of such fiscal years.

What is the security for the bonds?

The bonds will be secured with a revenue pledge by the Providence Water Enterprise Fund

Revenues under the Providence Water Bond Indenture.

Has Providence Water received a commitment letter from the RI Infrastructure

Bank?

Yes it has, See Exhibit V.

Has Providence Water received a Certificate of Approval from the RI Department of

Health?

Yes. The Certificate of Approval was received from the RI Department of Health on April

25, 2008. It is attached as Exhibit VI.

Is Providence Water seeking expedited consideration of this matter?

Yes. Although the RI Infrastructure Bank will not issue bonds until spring of 2017,

Providence Water is asking for approval from the Division so that we may include it as

documentation in support of our rate relief request for this borrowing in the current rate

filing in front of the Commission. Hearings begin January 24, 2017,

]joes this conclude y.our testi‘m;)ny?

Yes.




STATE OF RHODE ISLAND DIVISION OF PUBLIC UTILITIES AND CARRIERS

DOCKET No. 17 -

ATTESTATION UNDER RULE 14
OF THE RULES OF PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE
OF THE DIVISION OF PUBLICUTILITIES AND CARRIERS

I, Nancy E. Parrillo, in conformance with Rule 14 of the Rules of Practice
and Procedure of the Division of Public Utilities and Carriers, hereby attest
under oath that the facts contained in my direct testimony with exhibits and
supporting documents are true and correct to the best of my knowledge,
information, and belief. All changes and differences between books and fest
year data and any changes in the manner of recording said data during the test

year have been expressly noted.

%Mw;ﬂ /M

ancy E. Parrillo

STATE OF RHODE ISLAND
PROVIDENCE COUNTY

Subserjbed and sworn to e this /a?\ day of January, 2017.

OFFICIAL STAL

ANY DINOB'LE
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EXHIBIT 1

RESOLUTION
OF THE
PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD

A Resolution of the City of Providence Water Supply Board authorizing the General
Manager to petition the Division of Public Utilities and Carriers to authorize long
term borrowing and to provide an effective date.

WHEREAS, the City of Providence Water Supply Board (the Board) is an agency of
the City of Providence, Rhode Island and owns and operates a Water Supply system
(the System); and

WHEREAS, the Board desires to make certain improvements to the Board's
distribution system and appurtenances thereto, including but not limited to the
cleaning, relining, repair and replacement of water mains, transmission lines, service
lines and valves (the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Board to borrow funds in an amount not to exceed
eighteen million dollars ($18,000,000) for the Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:

o4 That the Board authorizes the General Manager to petition the
Division of Public Utilities and Carriers to authorize long term borrowing, and to
authorize the City and the Board to borrow through the Rhode Island Infrastructure
Bank and/or any other funding avenues for the Project.

e This resolution shall take effect upon passage.
The above and foregoing was duly adopted and approved at a meeting of the City of

Providence Water Supply Board as held on April 20, 2016 by vote of the members of
the Providence Water Supply Board present.

ﬂmiua ‘IQ"&MMHO

Carissa R. Richard, Secretary
Providence Water Supply Board

Xaykham Khamsyvoravong, Chairman
Providence Water Supply Board

C




EXHIBIT II

Citp of Provivence

STATE OF RHODE 1SLAND AND PROVIDENCE PLANTATIONS
—

CHAPTER 2016-32

No0.317 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE APPROVING
IMPROVEMENTS TO THE PROVIDENCE WATER SUPFPLY BOARD'S
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM AND APPURTENANCES THERETO,
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE CLEANING, RELINING,
REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT OF WATER MAINS, TRANSMISSION
LINES, SERVICE LINES AND VALVES, AND ALL ATTENDANT
EXPENSES AND APPROVING THE FINANCING THEREOF BY THE
ISSUANCE OF WATER REVENUE BONDS AND NOTES THEREFOR IN
AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $18,000,00¢

) o Approved August 3, 2016 i
Be it ordained by the City of Providence:

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF FROVIDENCE THAT:

SECTION 1. A sum not to exceed Eighteen Million Dollars ($18,000,000) is
appropriated for improvements fo the Providence Water Supply Board {"Providence Water")
distribution system and appurtenances thereto, including but not limited to cleaning, reliming,
repair and replacement of water mains, transmission lines, service lines and valves (the
"Project"), including fimding a debt service reserve fund and costs of issuznce. The period of
usefilness of the improvements financed as part of the Project is expected to be not less than
forty (40) vears. ‘

SECTION 2. In accordance with Chapter 46-12.8 of the Rhode Island General Laws,
the City Treasurer and the Mayor are hereby authorized to borrow an amount not exceeding
Eighteen Million Dollars ($18,000,000) from the Rhode Island Infrastructure Bank, and to
evidence such loan, such officers are hereby authorized to issue and refund on behalf of the City,
in an amount not exceeding Bighteen Million Dollars ($18,000,000) water revenue bonds (the
"Bonds") of the City, at one time, or from time to time in order to meet the foregoing
appropriation.

SECTION 3. The said officers from time to time may issue and refund not exceeding
$18,000,600 irtersst bearing or discounted water revenue notes (the ™ Notes") in anticipation of
the issue of said Bonds.

SECTION 4. The Bonds and Notes shall be payable solely from revenues of the
Providence water supply system. The City may issue bonds, notes, or other obligations on a
parity with these Bonds. The manner of sale, amount, denominations, maturities, conversion er
registration privileges, interest rates, medium of payment, and other terms, conditions and details
of the Bonds or Notes may be fixed by the officers authorized to sign the Bonds or Nates. The
net debt of the City is not affected by the issuance of the Bonds or Notes and the Bonds and
Notes authorized hereby will be within all debt and other limitations ptescribed by the
Constitution and the laws of Rhode Island.

SRCTION 3. Pending the issuance of the Bonds under Section 2 hereof or pending or in
lieu of the issue of Notes under Section 3 hereof, the General Manager of Providence Water may
expend funds from the Water Fund of the City for the purposes specified in Section 1 hereef.
Any advances made under this section shall be repaid without interest from the proceeds of the
Bonds or Notes issued hereunder ot from the proceeds of applicable federal or state assistance or
from other avaitable funds.




SECTION 6. The City Treasurer, the Mayocr and the General Manager of Providence
Water are also authorized, empowered and directed, on behalf of the City, to: (i) execute,
acknowledge and deliver a Supplemental Indenture (the "Supplemental Indenture™ by and
between the City and U, 5. Bank, National Association, as trustee (the "Trustes") amending and
supplementing the Trust Indenturs dated June 5, 2008 by and between the City and the Trustee
{as supplemented, the "Indenture”) relating to the Bonds and any and all other Joan agreements,
documenis, including disclosure documents for investors, certificates or instruments necessary to
effectuate such borrowing; (i) amend, modify or supplement the Indenture, the Bonds or Notes
and any and all other loan agreements, documents, certificates or instruments at any time and
from time to time, in such manner and for such purposes as such officers shall deem necessury,
desirable or advisable; (iii} direct the Trustee with regard to investments of trust funds pursuant
to the Trust Indenture, and (iv) do and perform all such other acts and things desmed by such
officers to be necessary, desitable or advisable with respect to any matters contemplated by this
Ordinance.

SECTION 7. The City Treasurer, the Mayor and the General Manager of Providence

Water are hereby authorized to deliver the Bonds or Notes to the purchaser and said officers are

§ 3 1 H A D damnn TEabaa
hereby authorized and ingtructed to take a1l actions, on behalf of the Clty and Providence Water,

necessary to ensure that interest on the Bonds or Notes will be excludable from gross income for
féderal income tax purposes and to refrain from all actions which would cause interest on the
Bonds or Notes to become subject to federal income taxes.

SECTION 8. The Director of Finance, the Mayor and the General Manager of
Providence Water are authorized to take all actions necessary to comply with federal tax and
séeurities laws including Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC
Rule") and to execute and deliver one or more Disclosure Certificates in connection with the
Bonds or Notes in the form as shall be deemed advisable by the Director of Finance, the Mayor
and the General Manager of Providence Water in order to comply with the SEC Rule. The City
hereby covenants and agrees that it will comply with and carry out all of the provisions of the
Disclosure Certificates, as they may be amended from time to time. Notwithstanding any ofher
provision of this Ordinance or the Bonds or Notes, failure of the City or Providence Water to
comply with a Disclosure Certificates shall not be considered an event of default; however, any
Bondholder or Noteholder may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including
secking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the City or Providence Waler
to comply with its obligations under this Section and under the Disclosure Certificate.

SECTION 8. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage.
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PROVIDENCE WATER  Jyne 30, 2016

Lori L. Hagen, City Clerk
City Hall
Providence, RI 02903

RE: Providence Water’s Ordinance for Improvements o and Financing of

‘Water Mains, Transmission Lines, Service Lines and Valve and Attendant Expenses i
The Moz, Jorge Q. Elorza
Mayor

Ricky Caruolo
General Manager

Dear Ms. Hagen:

Attached is the Providence Water Supply Board (PW) Ordinance for Improvements
to and Financing of Water Mains, Transmission Lines, Service Lines and Valve and
BOARD OF DIRECTORS Attendant Expenses.
AGYRNER AIamsyvoravang
Chaiparson Tl Water Supply Board approved this borrowing at their meeting held on April 20,
Jeseph D, Cataldl 2016, This Water System Improvement Ordinance is being sponsored by
Viee Champerson ¢~ oincilman Correda and Councilwoman Matos, Please have this Ordinance put on
Michael J. Commeia  the docket for the July 7, 2016 City Council meeting.
Councliperson
i atoe  Aword file of the Ordinance will be emailed to you by 10a.m. on July 1, 2016. The
avirenge J. ancini hard copy will be delivered. If you have any questions, or need any additional
Ex-Officio information my extension is 7238,

Andy M. Andujar
member  Respeotfully,

Karri Lynn Thuther
Member  Providence Water Supply Board

Catlssa R. Richard
Secretary Md
Witiiam E. O'Gara, Esq. ancy B Parrillo

Legal Advisor Senior Manager - Finance

MEMBER Enclosures

Rhodg Islan Water Works Assn.

New England Water Works Assn, ce:
Anerican Water Works Assn, - i

Watsr Rasearch Foundation M. Correia

S. Matos
An EPA waterSense Partner 1. Mancini
(401) 521-6300  R. Caruolo
162 Acadamy Avenue P. Pallozzi
Providence, RI 02008 1. Massaro
I Kuti
www.provwater.com A. Mignanelli

B Foliow us @provater M. Deignan-White

Bl Like ve at file
facebook.com/Providencewater
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EXHIBIT III

PROVIDENCE WATER
CAPITALIZATION
6/30/2016
Interest . Actual Pro-Forma
Due Rate Qutstanding (1 Amount
Long Term Debt:
Clean Water Revenue Bonds 2002 (2) 9/1/2021 3.61% 3 924704 % 024,704
Clean Water Revenue Bonds 20084 (3) 9/1/2029 2.85% 26,703,000 26,703,000
ARRA Stimulus Bonds 2009 (4) 10/2/2015-9/1/30 .041-3.14% 8,274,000 8,274,000
Clean Water Watershed Bonds 2012 (5) 912032 012-324% 2,621,000 2,621,000
Clean Water Watershed Bonds 2013 (6) 9/1/2033 019.253% 3,842,000 3,842,000
Clean Water Revenue Bonds 2013 (7 9/1/2034 022 -2.63% 23,960,000 23,960,000
Clean Water Revenue Bonds 2014 (8) 9/1/2034 .022-3.01% 7,668,000 7,668,000
Clean Water Revenue Bonds 2015 (19 9/1/2035 024 - 2.74% 30,000,000 30,000,000
Clean Water Revenue Bonds 2017 - 17,000,000
Total Bonds 3 103,992,704 3 120,992,704
Total Capitalization $ 103992704 3 120,992,704
Total Assets (Unaudited) [E)] $ 433465685 % 450,465,685
Debt/Total Assets 23,99% 26,86%
Net Utility Plant (9) $ 286,422,648  § 303,422,648
Debt/Net Utility Plant 36.31% 39.88%

{1} Inclydes long term and current amounts.

{2) Borrowing 12/04/01 (WCWDS Impravements) from WCWDS Funds.

(3) Borrowing 05/19/08 CWFAQ8a for Various IFR Projects from IFR Funds.
{4 Borrowing 9/09 CWFAD9 for Various Prajects from ARRA Stimulus Funds,
{5) Borrowing 6/12 CWFA for Watershed Acquistion paid from WQPF.

{6) Borrowing 6/12 CWFA for Watershed Acquistion paid from WQPF.

{7) Borrowing 05/06/13 CWFA13 for Main Replacements & Appurtenances.
{8) Borrowing 12/04/14 CWFA14 for Main Replacements & Appartenances.
(%) From Unaudited Balance Sheet Amounis as of 6/30/16

{10) Borrowing 12/02/2015 RITB15 for Central Operations Facility.




EXHIBIT 1V

Rhode Island Infrastructure Bank
Safe Drinking Water Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2017
Rates as of 5/12/2016 Plus 100 BP - Preliminary Subject to Change

Calculation of Borrower Rate
Providence WSB - $16.398M DWSRF Agency Loan {A Rated, Revenue Pledge}

Borrower. Providsnce WSB  Highest Rating: A
Rate Lock Date: 06/10/16 MMD Scale:  Revenue-A
Closing Date: 03/08M17 Zero% Subsidy: -

Pledge: Revenue DSR Required: Yes
Flus Total
Market Less 25% Subsidized Loan Admin, Borrower
Maturity Rate Subsidy Rate Rate Fee Billing Rate

2017 1.590% -0.400% 1.190% 1,190% 0.800% 1.6890%
2018 1.850% -0.460% 1.390% 1.390% 0.500% 1.880%
2018 1.990% -0.500% 1.490% 1.490% 0.500% 1.980%
2020 2.170% -0.540% 1.830% 1.630% 0.500% 2.130%
2021 2.370% -0,590% 1,.780% 1.780% 0.500% 2.280%
2022 2.580% -0.640% 1.920% 1.920% 0.800% 2.420%
2023 2.740% -0.680% 2.050% 2.050% 0.500% 2.550%
2024 2.890% -0.720% 2.170% 2.170% 0.500% 2.8670%
2025 3.090% -0.770% 2.320% 2.320% 0.500% 2.820%
2026 3.490% -0.870% 2.620% 2.620% 0.500% 3.120%
2027 3,720% -0,930% 2.790% 2,780% 0.500% 3.290%
2028 3.910% -0.980% 2.930% 2.930% 0.500% 3.430%
2028 4.040% -1.010% 3.030% 3.030% 0. 500% 3,530%
2030 4,010% -1,000% 3.010% 3.010% 0.500% 3.510%
2031 4.040% -1.010% 3.030% 3.030% 0.500% 3.530%
2032 4.070% -1.020% 3.050% 3.050% 0.500% 3.550%
2083 4.100% -1.030% 3.070% 3.070% 0.500% 3.570%
2034 4,120% -1.030% 3.080% 3.090% 0.500% 3.590%
2035 4.140% -1.040% 3.100% 3.100% 0.500% 3.600%
2036 4.170% -1.040% 3,130% 3.130% 0.500% 3.630%
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Rhode Island Infrastructure Bank
Safe Drinking Water Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2017
Rates as of 5/12/2016 Plus 100 BP - Preliminary Subject to Change

Sources & Uses
Providence WSB - $16.399M DWSRF Agency Loan (A Rated, Revenue Pledge)

Sources:
Agency - Bond Proceeds
Direct Loan - State Match
Dirsct Loan - State Match Repayments
Fed Direct - 2015 Cap Grant
Fed Direct - 2015 Cap Grant "Green"
Fad Direct - Revanue Releasa Funds
Fad Direct - De-Allocated List Funds
Fed Direct - Prin Forgiveness Funds

16,398,200,00

Total Sources

18,399,200.00

Uses:
Agency Loan - Deposit to Construction Fund
Principal Forgiveness Funds
Deposit to DSRF
Capitalized Interest
Loan Crigination Fes {1.0%)
Costs of Issuance - Local Level

15,000,000.00

1,172,794.38

163,9082.00
82,413.64

Totai Uses

16,398 ,200.00

| Providence WSB - Agency Loan Statistics (Exclusive of Fees):

|

Weighted Average Maturity (Years)
Markat Yield on the Loan:
Effeciive Yield* on Total Agency Loan

Net Effoctive Subsidy:

*Effective Yield incorporates:
* 25% DWSRF Interest Rate Subsidy

FirstSouthwest | RIIB - DW2017 Providence WS® - Preliminary 6.10.16.xlsm

11.3808
3.911%
2.848%

27.180%
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Rhode Island Infrastructure Bank
Safe Drinking Water Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2017
Rates as of 5/12/2016 Plus 100 BP - Preliminary Subject to Change

Construction Fund Cash Flow

Providence WSB - $16.399M DWSRF Agency Loan (A Rated, Revenue Pledge)

Date

Beginning
Bzlance

Loan Proceeds

Deposit

Cost of
Issuance

Agency Loan
Draws

DSRF &
Cap-l

Total
Draws

Ending Fund
Balance

&-Month Ye
Const. Draws  Spent

03/08M17
04/0117
05/01/17
06/01/17
070117
08/0117
08101117
100117
11/0117
12/0117
01/01/18
02/01/18
03/01/18
04/01/18
05/01/18
0&f01/18
Q7/01/18
08fo1/18
09/01/18
10/01/18
11/01118
12/01118
01/01/19
02/01119
03/01/19
04/01/19
05/01/19
08/01/19
07/01/19
08/01/19
09/01/19
10/0118
11101719
12/01/1¢
01/01/20
02/01/20
03/01/20
04/01/20
05/01/20
08/01/20

FirstSouthwest | RIIB - DW2017 Providence WSB - Preliminary 8,10.16.xlsm

15,G00,000.00
13,000,000,00
11,000,000.00
§,000,000.00
7,000,000.00
5,000,000.00
3,000,000.00
1,000,000.,00

16,389,200.00

226,405.64

2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
1,000,000.00

1,172,794.26

1,399,200.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
1.000,000.00

16,388 200.00

226,405,64

15,000,000.00

1,172,794.38

18,399,200.00

15,000,000,00
13,000,000.00
11,000,000.00
9,000,000.00
7,000,000.00
5,000,000.00
3,000,000,00
1,000,000.00

12,000,000.0¢ 80%

3,000,000.00 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

15,000,000.00
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Rhode Island Infrastructure Bank
Safe Drinking Water Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2017
Rates as of 5/12/2016 Plus 100 BP - Preliminary Subject to Change

L.oan Balance
Providence WSB - $16.398M DWSRF Agency Loan (A Rated, Revenue Pledge)

Interest {1} Semiannual
Agency Loan  Agency Loan Accrued @ Intarest Loan Fees @
Date Draws Balance 2.800% Requirements 0.500%

Samiannual
Loan Fees
Payable

03/08M7 1,399,200.00  1,398,200.00 - - -
040117 2,000,000.00  3,389,200.00 2,324.23 - 446,97
Q6701117 2,000,000.00  5,399,200,00 7,364.93 - 1,418,33
oefa1/17 2,000,000.00  7,399,200.00 11,608.27 - 2,249.67
Q7101717 2,000,000.00  8,399,200.00 18,031.60 - 3,083.00
08101117 2,000,000.00 11,398,200.00 20,364,093 - 3,916.33
08/01117 2,000,600.00 13,386,200.00 24,608.27 82,482.25 4,748.67
1001147 2,000,000.00 15,398,200.00 28,031.60 - 5,582.00
140117 1,000,000,00 15,392,200.00 33,364.93 - 5,416.33
120117 - 16,329,200.00 35,531.60 - §,833.00
01/01/18 - 16,399,200.00 35,531.60 - 8,833.00
02/01/18 - 16,389,200.00 35,531.60 - £,833,00
03/0118 - 18,399,200.00 35,531.60 204,622.93 8,833.00
04{01118 - - - - -
05/01/18 - - - - -
08/01/18 - - - B -
070118 - - - - -
08/0t/18 - - - - -
09/01/18 - - - - -
10/01118 - - - - -
11/01/18 - - - - -
12/01/18 - - - - -
01/01/19 - - - - -
02/01118 - - - - -
03/01/18 - - - - -
04/01/18 - - - - -
05/01/18 - - - - -
08/01/18 - - - - -
07/01/18 - - - - -
08/01/1¢ - - - - -

. 09/01/118 - - - - -
10/01/19 - - - - -
11/01/19 - - - - -
12/01/19 - - - - -
01101420 - - - - -
o2/01/20 - - - - -
03/01/20 - - - - “
04/01/20 - - - - -
05/01/20 - - - . -
06/01/20 - - - - -

16,39¢,200.00 287,005,168 287,005.18 55,193.30

55,193.30

N Interast rate represents the weighted average loan rate for the entire loan amortization.
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Rhode Island Infrastructure Bank _
Safe Drinking Water Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2017
Rates as of 5/12/2015 Plus 100 BP - Preliminary Subject to Change

Loan Debt Service
Providence WSB - $16.399M DWSRF Agency Loan (A Rated, Revenue Pledge}

Net Total Annual
Loan {1} Fees @ Total Fees Net Debt Net Debt
Date Frincipal Rate Interest 0.500% & Interest Service Service & Fees
03/08M17 -
08/01M7 - 1.190% 82 482.23 15 881.97 98,344.20 08,344.20 98,344,20
03/01/18 - - 204,522.93 39,331.33 243,854.26 243,854.26 -
09/0118 673,000.00 1.380% 212,868.18 40,298.00 253,867.18 926,867,18 1,170,721.44
03/01/19 - - 208,181.83 38,315,850 247,807.33 247,507.33 -
09/01119 686,000.00 1.450% 208,191.83 39,315.80 247 .507.33 ©33,507.33 1,181,014.66
03/01/20 - - 203,081.13 37,600.50 240,681.63 240,681.83 -
/01720 £5%9,000.00 1.630% 20308113 37,800.50 240,681,683 939,681.63 1,180,363.26
03/01/21 - - 197,384.28 35,853.00 233,237.28 233,237.28 -
09/01/21 714,000.00 1.780% 197,384.28 35,853.00 233,237.28 947,237.28  1,180,474.58
03/01/22 - - 191,029.88 34,068.00 225087.68 225,097.68 -
08/01/22 730,000.00 1.920% 191,029.68 34,068,00 225097.68 955 087.68  1,180,195.38
03/01/23 - - 184,021.68 32,243.00 216,264.68 216,264.68 -
09/01/23 748,000.00 2.050% 184,021.68 32,243.00 216,264 68 064,264,868 1,180,529.38
03/01/24 - - 176,354.68 30,373.00 208,727.68 206,727.68 -
08/01/24 767,000.00 2,170% 176,354.68 30,373.00 206,727.68 97372768  1,180,455.36
03/01/25 - - 168,032.73 28,455,560 196,483.23 196,488.23 -
09/01/25 788.000.00 2.320% 168,032.73 28,455.50 196,488.23 084,488.23 1,180 976,46
03/01/26 - - 158,891.93 26,485.50 185,377.43 185,377.43 -
09/01/26 §10,000.00 2.620% 158,891.93 26,4B85.50 185,377.43 8995,377.43 1,180,754.88
03/01/27 - - 148,280,093 24 .480.50 172,741.43 172,741.43 -
09/01/27 835,000.00 2.790% 148,280.93 24,450.50 172,741.43 1,007 741.43 1,180,482.86
03/01/28 - - 136,632.68 22,373.00 159,005.68 159 005,68 -
09/01/28 863,000.00 2.930% 136,632.68 22,373.00 159,005.68  1,022,005.68  1,181,011.38
03/01/29 - - 123,980.73 20,215.50 144,205.23 144,205.23 -
09/01/29 892,000.00 3.030% 123,989.73 20,215.50 144,205.23 1,038,205.23 1,180,410,46
03/01/30 - - 110,475.83 17,885.50 128,461.43 128,451.43 -
09/01/30 924,000.00 3.010% 110,475.93 17,985.50 128,461.43 1,052,461.43 1,180,922 86
03101131 - - 95 569.73 15,675.50 112,245.23 112,245.23‘ -
09/01/31 ©56,000.00 3.030% 06,569.73 15,675.50 112,245.23 1,068,245.23 1,180,480.46
03101132 - - 52,088.33 13,285.50 95,371.83 95,371.83 -
09/01/32 860,000.00 3.050% 82,086.33 13,285.50 95,371.83 1,085,371.83 1,180,743.66
03/01/33 - - 66,988.83 10,810.50 77,799.33 77,799.33 -
09/01/33 1,025,000.00 3.070% 56,088.53 10,810.50 77.799.33 1,102,799.33 1,180,598 66
03/01/34 - - 51,255.08 8,248.00 59,503.08 £9,503.08 -
09/01/34 1,082,000,00 3.080% 51,255.08 8,248.00 £9,503.08  1,121503.08 1,181,008.18
03/01/35 . - 34,847.18 5,583.00 40,440.18 40,440.18 -
09/01/35 1,100,000.00 2.100% 34,847.18 5,553.00 40,440.18  1,140,440.18  1,180,880.36
03/01/36 - - 17,797.18 2,843,00 20,640.18 20,640.18 B
09/01/36 1,137,200.00 3.130% 17,797.18 2,843.00 20,6840.18 1,157,840.18 1,178,480.36
16,399,200.00 5,211,687.42 907, 959,30 6,119,8656,72 22,518,856,72 22 518,8586,72

t1) Interest during construction is calculated based on the timing of expected draws and the overall weighted average loan rate of 2,600%.
{2) Minimum princlpal amoriization is requirad before Construction Fund is completely drawn.
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EXHIBIT V

235 Premenade Street, Sulte 119
Pravidence, Rhade Island 02908
T 401,453.4430
F401,453.4094
titnfrastructurebank.com

RHODE ISLAND
INFRASTRUCTURE BANK

November. 2, 2016

Ricky Caruolo, General Manager
Providence Water Supply Board
552 Academy Avenue
Providence, RI 02908

RE:  Providence Water Supply Board
up to $17,000,000 Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan for
drinking water infrastructure improvement projects

Dear Mr, Caruole!

The Board of Directors of the Rhode Island Infrastructure Bank (the
"Bank"), pursuant to policies and procedures adopted In accordance with the
Safe Drinking Water Act Amendments of 1996 and Chapters 46-12,2 and 46-
12.8 of the Rhode Island General Laws, Is pleased to Inform you that the
application of the Providence Water Supply Board (the "Borrower") dated
September 22, 2016 for financing through the Bank has been approved, at
the Bank's September 28, 2016 Board Meeting, and in consideration of the
receipt of the Certificates of Approval referred te below, the Bank shall
provide financial aid in the form of a [oan on the terms stated below, in an
amount not to excead $17,000,000 for a term not to exceed 29 years after
project completion.

This approval is subject to Providence Water Supply Beard meeting the
following terms:

1) That the project to be funded appears on the Department of
Mealth's (“DOH") Project Pricrity List and have Certificates of
Approval issued by DOH;

2} That the loan security be in a form acceptable to the Bank;

3} That the Borrower comply with applicable federal, state and
municipal laws, ordinances, rules and/or regulations and Bank
requirements; and

4y That a mutually accepted loan agreement be signed by all
narties to the transactions.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

{1} Divigion of Public Utilities and Carriers

Prior to entering into a loan agreement, the Borrower must receive
approval from the Division of Public Utllitles and Carrlers for entering
intd fong term financing with the Bank, if such approval is required by
law, rule, or regulation.




(3)

Cef-tificate of Approval

Prior to disbursement cf funds by the Bank, the Bank must be in
recalpt of Certlficate(s) of Anproval by the Rhode Isiand Department of
Health (DOH) of the Borrower's proposed project(s), pursuant to Title
46-12,8 of the Rhode Island General Laws, and rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder.

Loan Adreement

There will be a loan agreement (the "agreement") with the Borrower
outlining the specific terms and conditions of the Bank's loan program,
as more generally set forth below and in the agresment, Including the
loan (the "Loan") to the Borrawer. The Borrower's repayment
obligation to the Bank under the agreement will be evidenced by a
bond of the Berrower outlining the Loan's speclfic terms and conditions
(the "Bond"),  The Bond shall be In fully marketable form,
accompanied by documentation, in form and substance satisfactory to
the Bank, and an opinion, in form and substance satisfactory to the
Bank, of natlonally recognized bond counsel satisfactory to the Bank as
to its valid authorization, execution, delivery and enforceability, The
general provisions of the agreement will Include (without fimitation)
the following provislions;

(a)  Forgiveness of Loan Principal

In accordance with EPA Appropriations statutes, rules,
regulations and guidance issued thereunder by the
Environmental Protection Agency, and Chapters 12.2 and 12,8
of Title 46 of the Rhode Island General Laws, all or a portlon of
the loan principal may be forgiven, The loan forgiveness
amount, if any, will be determined prior to loan closing.

{b)  Borrowing Rate

Loans will be fixed to equal, as nearly as practicable, three
quarters (3/4)} of the prevailing market Interest rate {the
"Subsidized Interest Rate™) for tex-exempt or taxable Issuers of
comparable creditworthiness and tax status to each Borrower,
as determined by the Bank on the advice of the Bank’s Financial
Adviser after consultaticn with the Borrower. Interest is to be
calculated on the basis of a 360-day year and twelve thirty-day
months, and may be capitalized during construction, Interest
payments are semi-annually on March 1 and September 1.
Borrower will be contractually llable for the full market interest
rate on the Loans, as determined by the Bank at the time of
closing on the Loan, but will be billed anly for the subsidized
*  interest rate as steted above,




(4)

{c) Amortization

Amortization will begin en September 1 beginning no later than
one year after project completion. Principal payments will be
made znnually on September 1 and the scheduie of payments
will be structured to meet the debt service and financial
asslstance needs of the Borrower.

{d): Einal Maturlty

Loans shall mature up to twenty years after the completion of
the funded project(s).

(e} Prepayments

A Loan may be prepaid by tha Borrower at any time with the
reasonable consent of the Bank but as & condlition o giving such
consent the Bank may require a prepayment penalty based on
the cost of relnvesting the prepayment or any other reasonable
negative financial impact to the Bank,

{f) Security

Loans will have a pledge of (a) general revenues and/or water
system user fee ravenues; and (b) may be secured by any
assets and/or credlt enhancements which the Bank deams
approprlate to protect the interest of the other participants in
the loan programs of the Bank; bond holders; other cradltors of
the Bank; or the finances of the Bank.

Construction Progress Payments

Progress payments for each construction project will be made through
the Borrower’s Construction Proceeds Account ("BCPA"). Loan
proceads will be transferred to the BCPA for the benefit of the Borrower
based upon approved Requlsition Forms submitted to the Bank. Upon
receipt of the Requisition Form, the Bank wlll verify: a) that a
Certificate of Approval has been issued by RIDCOH; b) that the vendor
is identifled in the contract; and ¢) that there is sufflclent-availability in
the BCPA to make the payment. Payments will be made diractly to the
vendor and/or the Borrower for raimbursements by the Bank, and a
"pald" stamped copy of the Redquisition Form will be sent to the
Borrower and RIDOH. RIDOH will perform periodic project inspecticns
to a) monitor construction prograss; b) verify eligibility of construction
costs under the program; and ¢} ensure that construction is in
conformity with Plans and Specifications. RIDOM will provide a copy of
the inspaction report to the Bank. Any adverse condlitions will be
reported to the Bank who will suspend further payments untll the

-3 -




(3)

(6)

adverse condltions have been rectified. RIDOH wlil perform a final
project inspection befcre the final payment is made by the Bank,

Reporting Requirements

Thé Borrower will be required to provide information to the Bank
during the life of the Loan. These are:

(&) A copy of its annual audited financial statements In accordance
. with Generally Accepted Government Accounting Standards or
other financial statements and compilations as acceptable to

the Bank.

(b) An annual analysis of operating revenues and expenses,
ncluding without limitatlon, & description of the status of the .
dedicated water system revenues and/or general revenues and
cperating expenses In excess of budgat.

(c) A copy of the annual budget of the Borrower, within fifteen days
of its adoption, If applicable.

(dy  An annual schedule of current and projecied short and long
term debt service. .

(e) An annual schedule of Infrastructure Replacement Fund
- Reserves,

{f) Copies of reports submitted to RIDOH, the Rhode Island
© Department of Environmental Managemeant, the federal
Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA") and any other
regulatory agency relating to any project financed by the Bank

or the operation thereof.

(g) If appropriate, an accounting of all bond proceeds separately
© bhecause, under the Tax Reform Act of 1986, all water and
sewer districts may possibly have to rebate arbitrage profits
regardless of whether they borrow through the Bank or
" otherwise. The $5,000,000 "small issuer” exemption will not
apply to water and sewer districts, Changes to the Code in
1989 do provide that if construction projects will be completed
with bond proceeds spent on a specific timetable within two
years, the Borrower may not be subject to the rebate provisions
contained In the Internal Revenue Code and temporary
regulations promulgated thereunder. The Borrower should
review this issue with bond counsel.

(h)  Other information or reports that the Bank deems appropriate.

Compliance with State and Federal Law




(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

The Borrower must comply with all applicable state laws and
regulations. Raciplents of loans must also comply with all
requirements of the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act, as amended and
regulations issued thersunder, in addition to any other applicable
federal laws and regulations (see attached- Davis-Bacon (DB)
preveiling wage requirements and EPA Guidance on Use of American
Tron and Steel),

In addition, the Borrower must agree to take all action, or refrain from
taking any action, that would cause Interest on any obilgations of the
Bank to be included, for federal income tax purposes in the gross
income of the holders aof such obligatlons.

Feas

An orlglnation fee of one percent {1%) of the principal amount of the
Loan will be payable to the Bank by the Borrower gt the time of the
Loan's closing. Costs incurred by the Bank In making the ioan will be
pald by the Bank. The Borrower will be responsible for its own costs
incidantal to the transaction; i.e. legal fees, bond counsel fees and
financial adviscry fees, The Bank will charge an annual service fee of
one-half of one percent (0.5%) of the Loan's outstanding principal,
payable semi-annually at each interest payment date. A late payment
fee will be charged for every 15 days thal a payment is [ate of five
percent (5%) of the amount of the late payment.

Financial Advisory Services

This letter shail constitute an acknowledgement and consent to the
provision of financial advisory services by First Southwest Company to
the Borrower ard to the Rhode Island Infrastructure Bank regarding
the Borrower loan.

Modifications

Where deemed appropriate by the Bank, waiver or variation of any
provisions herein may be made or additional requlrements may be
added

Merger

Once the Agreement, the Bond and all other closing documents, in
formn "and substance satisfactory to the Bank, asscciated with the
making of the Loan (collectively, the "Closing Documents™) are
axecuted, the terms of this letter shall be merged with those of the
Closing Documenis. The terms of the Closing Documents will govern
the extension of the Loan to the Borrower. To the extent that any
provisions contained in this letter are inconsistent with the definitive
provisions contained in the Closing Documents, the terms of the




Clo,'_sing Documents shall control.

(i) Beneficiaries

This letter shall constitute a binding commitment between the Bank
and the Borrower bui no third party shall have any rights arising
hereunder and the Borrower shall indemnify and hold the Bank
harmless from any and all claims arising frem or in connection with
this letter, the Loan or the project financed thereby, In any case, the
Bank's liability under this letter shali be iimited to the amount held in
the Borrower’'s BCPA from time to time,

Two cobles of this letter are enclosed, ‘Please sign both and return one
original copy to this Bank at 235 Promenade Street, Sulte 119, Providence, RI
02908,

I would like to take this opportunity to thank you for your participation
in the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund. Please be assured that every
effort wlll .be made to get the lowest total cost for your long-term capital
needs. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call this office.

Very truly yours,

RHODE ISLAND INFRAST%@BANK
By: W“:@

. Jeffrey DTeI@éxeéﬂtive Directorl/CEO
Accepted this /(& day of /%Wgﬁfiéﬂ“fﬁ , 2016
B R 5
By:! !(’% M{%Mﬁ,

Title:

=7 4 o

Providence Water Supply Board

Name and‘..Address of Lega! Counsel and/or Bond Counsel to the Borrower

ces Carlene Nawman-RI DOH
Christopher Vitale, Esq., Bank Counsel




ATTACHMENT 1 ‘ ‘ ‘
|. Requirements Under The Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2016 (P.L. 114-113) For Suk
recipients That Are Governmental Entities : ‘

The ‘ollowing terms and conditions specify how reclplents wil assist EPA in meeting its
Davis-Bacon (DB} responsibilities when DB applies to EPAawards of financial assistance under
the Consclidated Appropriations Act, 2016 (P.L. 114-113) with respect to State reciplents and
sub recipients that are governmental entities. If a sub reciplent has guestions regarding when
DB applies, obtaining the correct DB wage determinations, DB provisions, or compliance
monitoring, it may contact the State recipient. If 2 State reciplent needs guidance, the recipient
may tontact Valerie Marshail (marshall.valerie@epa gov or 617-918-1674) of EPA Region 1 for
guidance. The recipient or sub recipient may also chtaln additional guidance from DOLs web

site at hitp://www.dol.gov/whd/

1. Applicability of the Davis - Bacon (DB} prevailing wage reguirements .
Under the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2016, DB prevailing wage req uirements apply 1o the
construction, alteration, and repair of treatment works cartled out in whole or in part with
assistance made available by a State water pollution control revolving fund and to any
construction project carried out in whale orin part by assistance made available by a drinking
water treatment revolving loan fund. If a sub recipient encounters a unigue situation at a site
that presents uncertainties regarding DB applicability, the sub recipient must discuss the
sttugtion with the reciplent State beforea uthorlzing work on that site.
2. Obtaining Wage Determinations . ‘
(a) Sub recipients shall obtain the wage determination for the locality In which a covered activity
subject to DB will take place prior to issuing requests for bids, proposals, quotes or other
methods for soliciting contracts (solicitation) for activities subject to DB. These wage
_determinations shall be incorporated into solicitations and any subsaquent contracs. Prime
contracts must contain a provision requiring that subcontractors follow the wage determination
incorporated into the prime contract. ’ o :
(i) White the solicitation remains open, the sub recipient shall monitor www wdol.gov
weekly to ensure that the wage determination contained in the soficitation
remains current. The sub recipients shall amend the solicitation if DOL issuies a
modification more than 10 days prior to the closing date (i:e. bid opening) for the
solicitation. If DOL modifies or supersedes the applicable wage determination '
less than 10.days prior to the closing date, the sub reciptents may reguesta
finding from the State recipient that there is not a reasonable time to natify
interested contractors of the modification of the wage determination. The State
recipient will provide a report of fts findings to the sul recipient.
(i1} If the sub recipient does not award the contract within 90 days of the closure of
the solicitation, any modifications or supersedes DOL makes to the wage
_determination contalned in the solicitation shall be effective unless the State
recipient, at the request of the sub recipient, cbtains an extension of the 90 day
period from DOL pursuant to 29 CFR 1.6 (c}(3}{iv). The sub recipient shall
menitor www.wiol.gov on a weekly basis if it does not award the contract within
. 90 days of closure of the solicitation to ensure that wage determinations.
contained in the solicitation remain current. | ‘
(b} If the sub recipient carries out activity subject to DB by issuing a task order, work
assignment or similar instrument to an existing contractor (ordering instrument) rather than by
puhlishing a solicitation, the sub recipient shall insert the appropriate DOL wage determinatian




~from www.wdol.gov into the ordering instrument. ,
(c) Sub reciplents shall review all subcontracts subject to DB entered into by prime contractors

to verify that the prime contractor has required its subcontractors to include the applicable wage
determinations. : ‘

{d) As provided in 29 CFR 1.6(f), DOL may isste a revised wage determination applicable toa |
sub reciplent’s contract after the award of a contract or the issuance of an ordering instrument if
DOL determines that the sub recipient has failed to Incorporate a wage determination or has
used a.wage determination that clearly does not apply to the contract or ordering instrument, If
this occurs, the subirecipient shall either terminate the contract or ordering instrument and issue
a revised solicitation or ordering instrument or incorporate DOL's wage determination retroactive
to the beginning of the contract or ordering instriment by change order. The sub recipient’s
contractor must be compensated for any Increases in wages resulting from the usz of DOL's
revised wage determination.

3. Contract and Subcontract provisions.

{a} The Recipient shall insure that the sub recipient(s) shall insert tn full in any contract in

excess of $2,000 which is entered into for the actual construction, alteration and/or repalr,
including painting and decorating, of a treatment work under the CWSRF or a construction
project under the DWSRF financed in whole orin part from Federal funds or in accordance with
guarantees of a Federal agency or finarncad from funds obtained by pledge of any contract of a
Federal agency to make a loan, grant or annual contribution {except where a different meaning
is expressly indicated), and which is subject 1o the labor standards provisions of any of the acts
listed In § 5.1 or the Consalidated Appropriations Act, 2016, the following clauses:

(1) Minimum wages.

(i} All laborers and mechanics employed or working upor the site of the work will be paid
unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or
rebate on any account (except such payrol deductions as are permitted by regulations issued

by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act {29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of wages

and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at
rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which s -
attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may
be alleged to exist between the contractor and such faborers and mechanics, '
contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe henefits under section
1{b)(2) of the Davis:Bacon Act on behaif of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to
such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph (a){1){iv) of this section; also,
regular contributions made or costs incurred for mare than a weekly period (but not less often
than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particutar weekly period, are

. deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and.
mechanics shall be pald the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage
determination for the classification of work actuatly performed, without regard 1o skili, except as
provided in § 5.5(a)(4), Leborers or mechanics performing work in mere than one classification
may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked
therein: Provided that the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spentin each
classificatian in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additicnal
classification and wage rates conformed under paragraph {a){1}(ii) of this section] and the
Davis-Baccn poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its _
subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily

seen by the workers,
Sub recipients may obtain wage determinations from the U.5. Department of Labor's web site,




. www.dol.gov,
(ii}(A) The sub recipient(s}, on behalf of EPA, shall require that any class of laborers or

mechanics, including helpers, which is not fisted in the wage determination and which is to be
employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage detarmination.
The State award official shall approve a request for an additional classification and wage rate
and fringe benefits therefore only when the fellowing criteria have been met:

(1) Tha work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification
in the wage determination; and

(2) The classification is utllized in the area by the construction industry; and

{3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable
relationship to the wage rates contained iri the wage determination.

(B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employad in the classification {if
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known), or their representatives, and the sub recipient{s) agree on the classification ana wage
rate {Including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate}, documentation of
the actlon taken and the request, including the local wage determination shall be sent by the sub
reciplant {s) to the State award official. The State award official will transmit the request, to the
Administrator of the Wage and Hour Divisicn, Employment Standards Administration, U.S.
Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210 and to the £PA DB Regional Coordinator
concurrently. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will aporove, modify, or
disapprove every additional classification request within 30 days of receipt and so advise the -
State award official or will notify the State award officlal within the 30-day period that additionat
time is necessary. ! '

{C) In the event the'contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or
their representatives, and the sub recipient(s) do not agree on the proposed classification and
wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the award
officlal shall refer the reguest and the local wage determination, including the views of all
interested parties and the recommendation of the State awa rd official, to the Administrator for
determination. The'reguest shall be sent to the EPA DB Reglonal Coardinator concurrenily, The
Administrator, or an authorized representative, wilt issue a determination within 30 days of
receipt of the request and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer
within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. o

(D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to
paragraphs {a){1){ii}(B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the
classificatian under this contract from the first day on which work Is performed in the
classification. : ' :

- {ili) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for & class of laborers or
mechanics includesa fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor
shall efther pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay ancther bona fide
fringe benefit or antho urly cash equivalent thereof. ‘

{iv) If the contractof does not make payments to a trustee of other third person, the contracter
may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs
reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe henefits under a plan or program, Provided,
That the Secretary of Laber has found, upon the writtén request of the contractor, that the
applicable standards of the Davis-Bacoh Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may

require tha contractor to set aside in a separate accou nt assets for the meeting of obligations
under the plan or program. ‘

(2) Withholding. The sub recipient(s}, shall upon written request of the EPA Award Official or an
authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhald or cause to be withheld from the




contractor under this contract or any cther Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or
any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements,
which 's held by the same prime contractor, so much of the accruad payments or advances as
may be considered necassary to pay laborars and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees,
and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required
by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or machanic, inciuding any apprentice,
trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work, all or part of the wages required
by the contract, the {Agency) may, after written notlce to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or
owner, take such action as may be necessary o cause the suspension of any further payment,
advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceasad, :

{3) Payrolls and basic records. .
(i} Payrolls and basic records reiating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the

course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafier for all laborers and

mechanics working:at the site of the work. Such records shall contain the name, address, and

- social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of
wages paid {including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or
cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b}{2){B} of the Pavis-Bacon Act),
daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever
the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or
mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a
plan or program described in section 1(b){2)(B} of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall
maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that
tha plan or progrant is financially responsible, and that the plan or pragram has been
communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the
costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits, Contraciors employing
apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the
registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of
the apprantices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prascribed inthe applicable
programs. ¢ A »

{ii){A) The contractor shall submit weekly, for each week in'which any contract work is
performed, a copy of all payrolls to the sub recipient, that is, the entity that receives the
sub-grant or loan from the State capitalization grant recipient, Such documentation shali be
available on request of the State reciplent or EPA. As to each payroll copy received, the sub
recipient shall provide written confirmation ina form satisfactory to the State Indicating whether
or not the project Is in compliance with the requirements of 29 CFR 5.5{2){1) based on the most
recent payrol copies for the specified week. The payrolls shail set out accurately and completely
all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a){3)(i), except that full social
security numbers and home addrasses shall not be included on the weekly payrolls. Instead the
payrells shail only need to include an individually [dentifying number for each employee (é.g.,
the tast four digits of the employes's social security number). The required weekly payroll
information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this
purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web slte at '
http:/fwww.dol.gov/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime contractor s
responsible for the submission of copies of payrolis by all subcontractors. Contractors and
subcontractors shall malntain the full social security number and current address of each
covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to the sub recipient{s) for transmission to
the State ar EPA if requested by EPA, the State, the contractor, or the Wage and Hour Division
of the Department of Lahor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with
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srevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime contractor to require

a subcontracter to provude addresses and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its
own records, wmhoutweekly submission to the sub recipient(s).

(B} Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compllance "glgned by the
contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the

persons employed L;nder the contract and shall certify the following:

(1} That the payrali Lfor the'payroll period contains the information required to be provided under

§5.5
(a)(3){ii) of Regulatlons, 28 CFR part 5, the appropriate information is being mainfained under §

5.5
(a}(3)i) of Regu}atlons 29 CFR part 5, and that such informatlon Is correct and complete;.
(2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprantice, and trainee) employad on

aid the full weelkly wages earned, without

~ the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weelkly wages earned

rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either ¢irectly or
indiractly from the full wages earned other than permissible deductions as set forth in
Regufations, 29 CFR part 3; ‘

(3) That ezch !aborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and
fringa benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the
apolicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.

(€) The weekly submission of a praperly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of
Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the “Statement of '
Compliance" required by paragraph (a}(3)(i1){B) of this section.

(D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or
subcantractor o clvil or criminal prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of
title 31 of the Umted States Code.

{iii) The contractor orsubcontractor shalt make the records required under paragraph {a}{3}i} of
this section available for inspectlon, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of
the State, EPA or the Dapartment of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview
employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the
required records orto make them available, the Federal agency or State may, after written
notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may bé necessary to
cause the suspensian of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore,
failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be
grounds for debarment action pursuant to 28 CFR 5,12,

{4) Apprentices and trainees
(i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permi itted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the

work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona
fide apprenticeship program reglstered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and
Tralning Administration, Office of Apprenticeship Trammg, Employer and Labor Services, or with
a Stata Apprentlceship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her
first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenmeship program,
who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certiffed by the Office of
Apprenticeship Treining, Employer and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency {where
appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of
apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shail not ke greater than the
ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any
worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise
amployed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage




determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice
performing work or the jeb site In excess of the ratio permiited under the registered program
shalt be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work
actually performed, Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other
than that in which its program is registerad, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages
of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered
program shall be observed, Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified In
the registered program for the apprentice's level of prograss, expressed as & percentage of the
journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage detzrmination. Apprantices shall be

paid fringe benafits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the
apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full
amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. if the
Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice
classification, fringes shalf be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Office
of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency
recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will
no longer he permitted to utllize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for
the work performed untif an acceptable program is approved.’ ‘ '

(ii} Trainees. Exceptas provided In 29 CFR 5.18, trainees will not be permitted to work at less .
than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and
individually reglstered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal
certification by theU.S. Dapartment of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, The
ratio of trainees to journeymen on the Job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan
approved by the Eriployment and Training Administration. Every tralnee must be pald 4t not
lass than the rate spécified in the approved program fer the trainee's level of progress,
expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage
determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the
trainee program. If the trainee program does ot mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid
the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination uhless the Administrator of
the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with
the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less
than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who
is not registared and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training
Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination .
for the classification of work actually performéd. In addition, any trainee performing work on the
Job site in excess of-the ratlo permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than
the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the
event the Employment and Tralning Administration withdraws approvat of a training program,
the contractar will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees et less than the applicable
predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program Is approved.

(jii} Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainaes and journeymen
under this part shall be in canformity with the equal employment opportunity requitements of
Exacutive Order 11246, as amended and 29 CFR part 30.

(5) Compliance with Copeland Act requirements. The contractor shall comply with the
requirements of 29:CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract.

(6) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses
contained in 29°CFR 5,5(a)(1) through (10} and such other clauses as the EPA detarmines may

by appropriate, and alsc a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any
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lower tler subcontracts, The prime contractor shall be responsible for the comipliance by any
subcantractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clsuses in 28 CFR 5.5,

(7) Contract termination; debarment. A breach of the contract clauses in 28 CFR 5.5 may be
grounds for termingtion of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor
as provided in 29 CFR 5.12. : '

(8) Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements. All rulings and interpretations
of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1,3, and 5 are herein
incorporated by reference in this contract.

(9) Disputes concerning labor standards. Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions
of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes
chall be resolved In gccordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29
CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes betwean the
contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and sub recipient{s), State, EPA, the U.S. Department
of Labor, or the employees or their representaiives. '

(10) Certification ofieligibility. A o
(i} By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any’
person o firm who has an interast in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ingligible to be
awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3{a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 28 CFR
5.12(a){1). | . :

{if}) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm inefigible for award of a
Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act.or 29 CFR 5.12{a}(1).

{jiii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed In the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.5.C.
1001, : ‘

4. Contract Provision for Contracts in Excess of $100,000.

(a) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. The sub recipient shall insert the following
clauses set forth in paragraphs {a)(1}, (2), {3}, and (4) of this section in full In any contract Inan
amount in excess of $100,000 and subject to the overtime provisions of the Contract Work
Hours and Safety Standards Act, These clauses shall be inserted in addition to the clauses
required by Item 3,:above or 29 CFR 4.6. As used in this paragraph, the terms laborers and
mechanics include watchmen and guards, :

(1) Overtime requiremants. No contractor of subeontractor contracting for any part of the
contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shal!
reguire or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek Ir which he or she is employed
an such work to work in excess of forty hoursin such workweek unless such laborer or
mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the hasic rate of
pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.

{2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any viclation of the
clause set forth in paragraph (a)(1) of this section the contractor and any subcontractor
responsible therefore shall be llable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and -
subcontractor shall be lizble to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the
District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages.
Such liguidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individua! laborer or machanic,
including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (a){1)
of this section, in the sum of $10 for each calendar day on which such individual was reguired or
permitted to work In excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the
overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (a){1} of this section.

{3) Withholding for Unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The sub recipient, upcn written
request of the EPA Award Official or an authorized representative of the Department of Labor,




shall withhold or cause to he withheld, from any moneys payable on account of worl performed
by the contractor ar subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with

- the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work
Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may
he determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for
unpaid wages and liguidated damages as prowded in the clause set forth in paragraph (b)( yof
this section.

(4} Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses
set forth in paragraph {a)(1) through (4) of this section and also a clause reguiring the
subcontractors to include these clauses in any tower tler subcontracts, The prime contractor
shall be responsible for comphance by any subcontractor ot lower tier subcontracter with the

clauses set forth in paragraphs {a}{1} through (4) of this section,
(b} In addition to the clauses contained in Item 3, above, in any contract SUbjECt only to the
Contract
Work Hours and Safety Standards Act and not to any of the other statutes clted n 29 CFR 5.1,
the Sub reciplent shall insert a clause requiring that the contracter or subcontractor shall
maintain payrdlls and baslc payroll records during the course of the work and shall preserve
them for a period of three years from the completion of the contract for all laborers and
mechanics, including guards and watchmen, warking on the contract. Such records shall contain
the name and address of each such employes, social security number, correct classifications,
hourly rates of wages pald, daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made, and
actual wages paid. further, the Sub recipient shail insert in any such contract a clause providing
hat the records to he maintained under this paragraph shall be made avaliable by the contractor
or subcontractor for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the
(write the name of agency) and the Department of Labor, and the contractor or subcontractor will
pertmit such representatives to interview employees during working hou rs on the job,
5. Compliance Verification
(2} The sub recipient shall pericdically interview a sufficlent number of employees entitled to
DB prevailing wages (covered employees} to verify that contractors or subcontractors are paying
the sppropriate wage rates. As provided in 25 CFR 5.6(a){8), all interviews must be conducted
in conficence. The sub reciplent must use Standard Form 1445 {SF 1445} or equivalent
“documentation to memorialize the interviews. Copies of the SF 1445 are available fmm EPA on
request. i
(b} The sub recipient shall establish and follow an Interview schedule based on its assassment
~of the risks of noncompliance with DB pased by contractors of subcontractors and the duration
of the contract of subcontract. Sub recipients must conduct more freguent interviews if the initial
interviews or bther information Indicated that there is a risk that the contractor or subcontractor
s not complying with D8, Sub recipients shail Immediately conduct interviews in response to an
alleged viclation of the preveiling wage requirements. All interviews shall be conducted in
confidence.” §
{c) The sub reclipient shalt periodically conduct spot checks of a representative sample of
weekly payroff data:to verify that contractors or subcontractors are paying the aparopriate wage
rates. The sub reciplent shall establish and foliow a spot check schedule based on its
assessment of the risks of noncompliance with BB posed by contractors or subcontractors and

the duration of the contract or subcontract. AL a minimum, if practicable, the subrecipient_____

should spot check payroll data within two weeks of each contractor or sybcontractor's
submission of its initial payroll data and two weeks prior to the completion date the contract or
subcontract. Sub recipients must conduct more frequent spot checks if the initiat spot check or




other Information indicates that there is a risk that the contractor or subcontractor is not
complying with DB. In addition, during the examinations the sub recipient shall verify evidence of
fringe benefit plansiand payments there under by contractors and subcontractors who claim
credit for fringe benefit contributions, ‘
(d) The sub racipient shall periodicatly review contractors and subcontractor’s use of
apprentices and trainees to verify registration and rertification with respect to apprenticeship
and training programs approved by aither the U.S Department of Labor or a state, as
appropriate, ahd that contractors and subcontractors are not using disproportionate numbers of,
laborers, trainees and apprentices. These reviews shall be conducted in accordance with the
schedules for spot checks and Interviews described
in Item 5(b) and {c)above. : ‘ _
(e} Sub reclpients must immediately report potential violations of the DB prevailing wa e

and
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requirements to the EPA DB contact fisted above and to the appi
District Office listed:at http://www.dol.gov/whd/america2.htm.
II, Reguirements Urider The Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2016 (P.L. 114-113) For Sub
reciplents That Are Not Governmental Entities : o

The following terms and conditions specify how recipients will assist EPA in meeting its DB
responsibilities when DB applies to EPA awards of financlal assistance under the FY2016
Consolidated Appropriations Act with respect to'sub racipients that are not governmental
entities. ¥ a sub reciplent has guestions regarding when D3 applies, pbtaining the cotrect DB
wage determinatiofis, DB provisions, or compliance monitoring, it may cohtact the State
recipient for guidarice, If a State recipient needs guidance, the recipient may contact Valerie
Marshall {marshall.valerie @epa.gov or 617-918-1674), EPA Grants Management Office for
guidance, The recipient or sub recipient may also obtain additional guidance from DOL's web
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site at : ;

http://www.dol.gov/whd/

Under these terms and conditions , the sub recipient must submit its nroposed DB wage
determinations to the State recipient for approval prior to including the wage determination in
any solicitation, contract task orders, work asslgnments, or similar instruments to existing
contractors. ' B

1, Applicability of the Davis -Bacon (DB} prevailing wage requirements .

Under the FY2016 Consolidated Appropriations Act, DB pravailing wage requirements apply to
the construction, alteration, and repair of treatment works carried out in whole or In part with
assistance made available by a State water pollution control revolving fund and to any
construction project carried out In whole or in part by assistance made available by a drinking -
water treatment revolving loan fund. If a sub recipient encounters a unigue situation at a site that
presents uncertainties regarding DB applicability, the sub recipient must discuss the situation
with the recipient State before authorizing work on that site, '

2. Obtaining Wage Determinations . - ‘

(a) Sub recipients niust obtain proposed-wage determinations for specific localities at
www,wdol.gov. Aftér the Sub recipient obtains its proposed wage determination, it must submit
the wage determination to June Swallow (june.swallow@health.rigov or 401-222-6867) for
approval prior to inserting the wage determination Into a solicitation, contract or issuing task
orders, work assignments or similar instruments to existing contractors (ordering instruments
unless subseguently directed otherwise by the State recipient Award Officiat.) .
{b) Sub recipients shall obtain the wage determination for the locatity In'which a covered activity -
subject to DB will take place prior to issuing requests for bids, proposals, quotes or other
methods for soliciting contracts (solicitation) for activities subject to DB. These wage




determinations shafl be incorporated into solicitations and any subsequent contracts, Prime .
contracts must confain a provision requiring that subcontractors follow the wage detarmination
incorporated into the prime contract. :

(I} While the sollcitation remains open, the sub-recipient shall monitor www,wdel.gov on

a weekly basis to edsure that the wage determination contained in 1he solicitation

remains current. Thie sub recipients shall amend the solicitation if DOL {ssues a

modification more than 10 days prior to the closing date {i.e. bid opening) for the
solicitation, If DOL modifies or supersedes the applicable wage determination less

than 10 days prior to the closing date, the sub recipients may request a finding from

the State recipient that there is not a reasonable time to notify interested contractots

of the modificationof the wage determination. The State recipient will provide a

report of Its findings to the sub recipient.

{1i) I the sub recipient does not award the contract within 80 d : :
solicitation, any modifications or supersedes DOL makes to the wage determination

contained in the solicitation shalt be effective unless the State recipient, at the,

request of the sub reciplent, obtains an extansion of the 90 day perlod fram DOL

pursuant to 29 CFRA.6{c){3){iv}). The sub reciplent shall monitor www.wdol.govon a

weekly basis if it does not award the contract within 90 days of closure of the

solicitation to ensure that wage determinations contained in the solicitation remain

current, ‘ ‘

{c) If the sub recipient carrles out activity subject to D3 by issuing a task crder, work assignment
or similar instrument to an existing contractor (ordering instrumeant) rather than by publishing a
solicitation, the sub'recipient shall insert the appropriate DOL wage determinaticn from
www,wdol,gov intetthe ordering instrument.

(d} Sub recipients shall review all subcontracts subject to DR entared into by prime contractors
to verify that the prime contractor has required its subcontractors to include the applicable wage
determinations. -

{e) As provided In 29 CFR 1.6(f), DOL may issue a revised wage determination applicable to a

sub recipient’s contract after the award of a contract or the Issuance of an ordering Instrument if
DOL determines that the sub recipient has failed to incorporate a wage determination or has
used a wage determination that clearly does not apply 10 the contract or ordering instrument., If
this occurs, the sub’reciplent shall either terminate the contract or ordering instrument and issue
a revised solic'tatioh or ordering instrument or incorporate DOL's wage determination retroactive
to the beglnning ofthe contract or ordering instrument by change order. The sub recipient’s -
contractor must be’compensated for any increases in wages resulting from the use of DOL’s
revised wage deterfnination. o

3, Contract and Subcontract provisions . |

(a) The Recipient shall insure that the sub reciplent(s) shall insert in full in any contract in

excess of $2,000 which is entered into for the actual construction, alteration and/or repair,
including painting and decorating, of a treatment work under the CWSRF or a construction
project under the DWSRF financed in whole or in part fram Federal funds or in accordance with
guarantees of a Federal agency or financed from funds obtained by pledge of any contract ofa
Federal agency to make a loan, grant or annuat contribution {except where a different meaning
is expressly indicatéd), and which is subject to the labor sta ndards provisions of any of the acts
listed in § 5.1 or the FY2016 Consolidated Appropriations Act, the following clauses:

(1) Minimum wages, _ ,

(i) All laborars and mechanics employed or working upen the site of the work, will be paid
unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deductian or
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rehate on any account {except such payroll deductions as are permitied by regulations Ess'uedr
by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)}, the full amount of wages

and bona fide fringe benefits (ar cash equivalents therecf) due at time of payment computed at
rates not Jess than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is.
" attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may
be alleged to exist betwaen the contractor and such laborers and mechanics, '
Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bena fide fringe benefits'under section
1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to
such laborers or mechanies, subject to the provisions of paragraph (a}{1){lv) of this section; also,
regular contributicns made or costs incurred for more thana weekly period (but not.less often
than quartarly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly peried, are
deemad to be constructively made ar incurred during such weekly period. Such.laborers and
machanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe hernefits on the wage '
determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as
provided in § 5.5(a)(4). Laberers or mechanics performing work in mere than one classification .
may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked

therain: Provided, that the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each.

classification in whigh work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional
classification and wage rates conformed under paragraph {(a)(1){il) of this sectlen} and the
Davis-Bacon poster:{WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its
subcontractors at the site of the work ina prominent and accessible place where it can be easily

© seen by the workers. :
Sub recipients may obtzain wage detarminations from the U.S. Department of Laber's web sitg,

www.dol.gov.

(i) (A} The sub reciplent(s], on behalf of EPA, shalt require that any class of laborers or

mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be

employed under the contract shall be classified In conformance with the wage determination.

. The State award official shall approve a request for an additional classification and wage rate

and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met:

(1) The work to be performed by the classification requestad is not performed by a classification
" in the wage determination; and ' ‘

(2} The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and

(3} The proposed wage rate, inciuding any bopa fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable

relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination,

(B} If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be amployed in the classification (if

‘known), or thelr representatives, and the sub recipient(s) agree on the classification and wage

rate {including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), documentation of

the action taken and the request, including the focal wage determination shall be sent by the sub

recipient(s) to the State award official. The State award official will transmit the report, to the

Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S.
Department of Labor, Washingtan, DC 20210 and tp the EPA DB Regional Coordinator

concurrentiy. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, ar

disapprove every additional classification request within 30 days of receipt and so advise the-

State award official or will notify the State award official withini the 30-day period that additional

time s necessary. : )

{C) In the event the.contractor, thedzborers or mechanics to be-employed in the classification or

their representatives, and the and the sub recipient{s} do not agree on the proposed

classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where

t
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appropriate), the award official shall refer the request, and the local wage determination,
including the views'of all interested parties and the recommendation of the State award official,
to the Administrator for determination. The request shall be sent to the EPA Regicnal '
Coordinator concurtently, The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a
determination within 3C days of receipt of the request and so advise the contracting officer or wilt
notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. '
(D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to
paragraphs
{a)(1){1){B) o {C) of this section, shall be paid to ail workers performing work in the classification
under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
(iii) Whanever the riinimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborars or
mechanics includes'a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor
shall either pay the‘benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide

‘ fringe henefit or an hourly cash equivaient thereof.
{iv} If the contractof does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor
may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs
reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided,
That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the
applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may
require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligatlons
under the plan or program., . o
(2) Withholding. The sub recipient(s) shall upon wrltten request-of the EPA Award Official or an
authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from the
contractor under this contract or any cther Federal contract with the same prime contractor, of
any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements,
which is held by the same prime contractor, so much of the accruad payments or advances as
may be cansidered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees,
and helpers, employed by the contracter or any subcantractor the full emount of wages required
by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any taborer or mecheanlc, inciuding any apprentice,
traines, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work, all or part of the wages required
Ly the contract, the (Agency) may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or
owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment,
advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.

(3) Payrolis and baslc records. ‘ ‘
(i} Payrolls and basit records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the

course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and
mechanics workingiat the site of the work. Such records shall contain the name, address, and
social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of
wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or
cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1{h}(2)(B} of the Davis-Bacon Act),

" daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever
the Sectatary of Labior has feund under 23 CFR 5.5{a){1){iv) that the wages of any laborer or
mechanic Include the amount of any costs reasanably anticipated in providing benefits under a
plan or program described in sectlon 1(b}(2){B} of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contracter shall
maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that
the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been
communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the
costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits, Contractors employing




apprentices or trainees under approved programs shali maintain written evidence of the
registration of apprenticeship programs and certiflcation of trainee programs, the registration of
the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates nrescribed in the applicable
frograms,

(ii}(A) The contractor shall submit weekly, for each week In which any contract work is

. performed, a copy of all payrolls to the sub rectpient, that s, the entity that recelves the
sub-grant or loan from the State capitalization grant recipient. Such documentation shall be
available on request of the State recipient or EPA, As to each payroll copy received, the sub
recipient shall prowde written confirmation In a form satisfactory to the State Indicating whether
or not the project is in compfiance with the requirements of 20 CFR 5.5(a)(1) based on the most
recent payroll copies for the specified week. The payrolls shall set out accurately and completely
zll of the information required to be malntained under 29 CFR 5.5(2){3)(i), except that full social
security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on the weekly pavrolls, Instead the
payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g.,
the last four digits of the employee's social security number). The required weekly payrof:
information may be submitted in any form deslred. Optional Form WH-347 is avaliable for this
purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at -
http://www.dol.gov/whd/forms/wh347Instr. htm or its successar site, The prime contractoris
responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. Contractors and
subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current address of each
covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to the sub recipient(s) for transmissian to
the State or EPA if requested by EPA, the State, the contractor, or the Wage ahd Hour Division

of the Department of Lahor for purposes of an Investigation or audt of compiiance with
prevailing wage requwements It Is not a viclation of this section for a prime contractor to reguire
a subcontractor to prowde addresses and soclal security numbers to the prime contractor for its
own records, without weekly submission to the sub reclpient(s}.

(8) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the
contractor or subcontracter or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the
pErsens emploved under the contract and shall certlfy the following:

(1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under

§55
(a)(3){ii) of Regulatlons 25 CFR part 5, the appropriate information is being maintained under §

5.5

(a)(3)(i) of Reguiat:ons, 29 CFR part 5, and that such information is correct and complete,

(2) That each laborer or mechanic {including each helper, apprentlce and trainee) employad on
the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without
rebate, either diractly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or
indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in
Regulations, 29 CFR part 3;

{3) That each laborér or mechanic has been paid not Jess than the applicable wage rates and
#ringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work paerformed, as speuﬁed in the
applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.

(C) The weekly submission of a properly exécuted certification set forth on the reverse srde of
Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Staternent of
Compliance” required by paragraph {a)(3 }{ii)(B) of this section.

(D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or
subcentractor to civil or criminal prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of

title 31 of the Unite:d




States Code,
(iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph {a}(3){I} of

this section available for inspection, copymg, or transcription by authorized representatives of
the State, |

EPA or the Department of Labor, and shall nermit such representatives to interview employees
during working houfs on the Job. If the contractor or subcontractor falis to submit the required
racords or to make them available, the Federal agency or State may, after written notice to the
contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to ceuse the
suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to
submit the required records upon reguest or to make such records availeble may be grounds for
debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR :

5.12,
!zl‘; Annrpnﬂrpq andtralnees - -

(l) Apprentices, Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the
work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona
fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment an¢
Training Administration, Office of Apprainticaship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with
a State Apprenticeship Agency recognlzed by the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her
first 80 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program,
who is not indlvidually registered in the program, but who has heen certifled by the Office of
Apprenticeship Tralhing, Employer and Labor Services or a State Aporenticeship Agency (where
appropriate) to be éiig[ble for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of
dpprentices to journaymen on the job site in any craft classification shzll not be greater than the
ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program, Any
worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise
employed as stated'above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wege rate on the wage
determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice
performing work on the job site in excess ef the ratio permitied under the registered program
shail be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determinatlon for the work
actually performed: Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a focality other
than that in which its program [s registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed In percentages
of the journeyman's hourly rate) spacified in the contractor's or subcontractors registered
program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in
the registered program for the apprentice’s leve! of progress, expressed as a pércentage of the .
journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be
paid fringe benefitsin accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the
“apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full
amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the
Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice
classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Office
of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency
recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will
no longer be permitted to.utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermmed rate for
the work parformed until an accepiable program is approved.
(). Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5,16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less
than the predetermined rate for the work performed uniess they are employed pursuant to and
individually registered in a program which has recelved prior approval, evidenced by formal
certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, The




ratio of trainees to journgymen on the job site shail not be greater than permitted under the plan
approvad by the Employment and Training Administration, Every trainee must be pald at not
less than the rate s;ieciﬁed in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress,

exprassed a8 a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage
determination. Trainees shail be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the
trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid
the full amcunt of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination un\ess'the Administrator of

. the Wage and Hour Division determines that there Is an apprenticeship program associated with
the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less
than full fringe benefits for apprentices, Any employee listed on the payroll at a traince rate who
is not registared and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training
Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination
for the classification of work actually performed, In addition, any trainee performing work on the
job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than
the applicable wage rate on the wage determinatlon for the work actually performed. in the
event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program,
the contractor will rio longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable
predetermined rate-for the work performed until an acceptable program Is approved.

(ill) Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen
under this par: shall be in conformlity with the equal empioyment opportunity requirements of
Executive Order 11246, as amended and 29 CFR part 30.

(5) Compliance with Copeland Act requirements. The contractor shail comply with the
requirements of 29_fCFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract.

(6) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert In any subcontracts the clauses
contained in 29°CFR 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as the EPA determines may

by appropriate, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any
lower tiet subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any
subcontractor or loWer tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5.

(7) Contract termination: deharment. A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be
grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as & contractor and a subcontractor

as provided in 28
CFR 5.12,
(8) Comphance W|th Daws~Bacon and Related Actleqwrements All ruTlngs and m’ferpretatnons

of the
Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by

-reference in this contract.

~ (8) Disputes concerhing labor standards. Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions
of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes

shall be resolved in‘accordance with the procedures of the Depastment of Labor set forth in 29

CFR parts 5, 6, and 7, Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the

contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and Sub recipient(s), State, EPA, the U.S. Department

of Labor, or the employees or their represe ntatives.

(10} Certification of-eligibility.

(i) By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it [nor he or she) nor any

persan or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person o firm ineligible to be

awarded Goverhment contracts by virtue of section 3{g) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 28 CFR

5.12(a)1).

(ti) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a




Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 25 CFR 5. 12(a)(1)..

{iily The penalty for makmg false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C,
1001. .

4. Contract Provision for Contracts in Excess of $100,000,

(2) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. The sub recipient shali insert the following
clauses set forth in paragraphs (a){1), {2), (3), and (4} of this section in full in any contract in an
amount in excess of $100,000 and subject to the overtime previsions of the Contract Work
Hours and Safety Standards Act, These clauses shiall be inserted in addition to the clauses
required by Item 3, above or 29 CFR 4.6. As used In this paragraph ‘the terms laborers and
mechanics include watchmen and guards.

(1) Qvertime reguirements. No contratior or subcontractor contractmg for any part of the
contract work which may require ot involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall
require or permit any such faborer or mechanlc in any workweek in which he or she Is employed
on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or
mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the baslc rate of
nay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.

(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. in the event of any violation of the
clause set forth in paragraph {b){1) of this section the contractor and any subcontractor
respansible therefore shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractar and

subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work dons under contract for the

District of Columbiz or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages.
“Such figuidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic,
including watchme# and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (k)(1)
of this section, in the sum of $10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or
permitied to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the
overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragrap h (b}{1) of this section.
(3) Withhoelding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The sub recipient shall upon the
request of the EPA Award Official or ar authorized representative of the Department of Labor,
withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys paya ble an account of work performed by
the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the
same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work
Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may
he determined 1o be necassary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for
unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (a}{2) of
this section. S
(4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert In any subcontracts the ciauses
set forth in pardgraph (a){1) through {4} of this section and also a clause requiring the
subcortractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor
shall be responsible: for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the

clauses set forth in paragraphs (a)(1) through (4} of this sectior.

(¢} In addition to the cfausas contamed in Itam 3, above, in any contract subject only o the
Contract

wWork Hours and Safety Standards Act and not to any of the other statutes cited in 29 CFR 5.1,
the Sub recipient shall insert a clause requiring that the contractor or subcontractor shall
maintain payrolls and basic payrol records during the course of the work and shall preserve
them for a period of three years from the completion of the contract for all laborers and.
mechanics, including guards and watchmen, working on the contract, Such records shall contain
the name and address of each such employee, secial security number, correct classd’catlons




hourly rates of wages paid, daily and waekly number of hours worked, deductions mads, and
actual wages pald. Further, the Sub recipient shall insert in any such contract a clause providing
that the records to be maintained under this paragraph shall be made available by the contractor
of subcontractor for Inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the
{write the name of agency) and the Department of Labar, and the contractor or subcontractor will
permit such represéntatives to interview employees during working hours on the jok.

5. Compliance Verification

{a} The sub recipient shall periodically Interview a sufficient number of employees entitled tc DB
prevailing wages (covered employees) to verify that contractors or subcontractors are paying the
appropriate wage rates. As provided in 29 CFR 5.6(a)(6), all interviews must be conducted in
confidence. The sub recipient must use Standard Form 1445 (SF 1445) or equivalent
documentation to memona!!ze the interviews. Coples of the SF 1445 are avarrable from EPA on
reguest,

(b) The sub recipient shall establish and follow an interview schedule based onits assessment

of the risks of nencompliance with DB posed by contractors or subcontractors-and the duration

_ of the contract of subcontract, Sub reciplents must conduct more frequent interviews If the initial .
interviews or otherinformation indicated that there Is a risk that the contractor or subcontractar
is not complying with DB. Sub recipients shall Immediately conduct interviews in response to an
alleged violation ofthe prevailing wage requirements. All interviews shall be conducted in
confidence." : _ '

{c) The sub recipient shall periodically conduct spot checks of a reprasentative sample of

weekly payroll data'to verify that contractors or subcontractors are paying the appropriate wage
rates. The suk recipient shall establish and follow a spot check schedule based on its

assessment of the risks of noncompliance with DB posed by contractors or subcontractors and
the duration of the tontract or subcontract, At a minimum, if practicable the sub remprent should
spot check payroll data wi ithin two weeks of each contractor or subcentractor’s submission of its
initfal payroll data ahd two weeks prior to the completion date the contract or subcontract. Sub
recipients must conduct more frequent spot checks if the initial spot check ot other mformatmn
indicates that there is a rlsk that the contractor or subcontractor is not complying with DB . In
addition, during the examinations the sub recipient shali verify evidence of fringe benefit ofans
and payments there under by contractors and subcontractors who claim credit for fringe benefit
contributions.

(d) The sub recipient shall periodically review contractors and subcontractors use of

apprentices and trainees to verify registration and certification with respect to apprenticeshin
and training prograims approved by either the U.S Department of Labor or a state, a5
appropriate, and that contractors and subgontractors are not using disproportionate numbers of,
laborers, traineas and apprentices. These reviews shall be conducted in accortance with the
schedules for spot checks and interviews described in Item 5(b} and {¢) above.

(e) Sub recipients must immediately report potential violations of the DB prevalling wage
requirements to the EPA DB contact listed abdve and to the appropriate DOL Wage and Hour
District Office listed at http://www.dol.gov/whd/america2 htm
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DWSRICERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL

Providence Water hasmet the pregrarii toqulrements of the Drinking Water State Revolving Pund
(DWSRE) for the proposed Replacement of Liead Services and Replace or Reflne Water Maing
project comprised of-dtawings and speolfications prepared by Providence Water hnd iy sligible to
apply for an SRF lean from the Rhode Island Clean Water Financs Agenoy for varlous aspects:of
the piojeot. Theprojeet consists of the replacoment of approximatoly: 19,000 service cennestions
ung relining or replacament of approximately 75,000 Toet-of water malhs. The estitmatod projent

“oostalup to 810H,0005000,00 inclisdes efthar-oopper.on-potyethylens servige cotiteotions; ourb
stops, outb boxes, fittings, valving, new piping, oetaent liung, fire hydrants and gppuritenanoes,
Providence Water has entitied that £ will comply with the eguirements of applicabls State gnd
Federal laws in the application package, The following oconditions detall certain gpacifio
requirements for this consbrustion projents  +

‘1. Providence Water ds tosponsible for ebisining wny -ofher neosssary ‘permits Ieiuding «
RIPDES pormitif the water used 4o flush and disinfoct the piping system i discharged to a
storm drain ar approvals from any Federal or State apency with aunthority over the projset or
projact ated. ' : ' '

2. All Construction related costs inéuryed prior to July 29, 2007 are insligible for DWERE
Program Partleipation, - : L

-~ -3, Shortternrconstruction related impasts-shalt he:miﬂgated‘by“u.tilizmg‘stén‘dﬁrd‘ SEdmERstion T "

and erosion eontrol metheds during constitotlon,

4, All applicsble arehitectural/engineering reports and plans ato fo he submittad upon theéir -
- avajlability, Co o ' ‘

5 The projectmay oveur over & aine (9) year period and thet addislons] loang may be seouted
with-titne Gver the courito of the projeet, Therefore-a certified oupy-of 4 reolution of the
: governing bady of fiie public water aystem divepting the:CEO-to submit an sppHoation for
‘ DWERY assistance shall be submiited o the Rhiede Tsland Clédn Watet Finnnee Agonoy (oopy fo -
be sibmitted HEALTH) such time an adiditional loan s raquested o finance the teplacemnentof
lead gervices and the relining or replacing water maing projest.

o / o ' . 7 .
A mM/.j‘/fij)
. B ﬂJ)r,ﬁe Svrallow, P.T., Chisf
- ' - Offeeof Diinking Water Quality
S _yfeslor
- TUDATR ,

Profeot Name: Replaoe Lead -Servg‘g’és = Rg;glade or Ling Water Mains:
Project Mumber: YWERF-08.15 - o .

¢t Rbode Ielahd Cleﬁﬂ.Wﬂtﬂ Finance Agénay _
Rhode Islend WBE/MBE compliangs office

State of Riedo Islnd and Providence Mlantations '
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Division of Drinking Water Quality
Prinking Water State Revolviig fund (DWSRE) Program

_ Categorieal Bxeluglon

The Offics of Drinking Water Quality has reviewed a proposed teplacetdent load
servives, and water tmain rehabilitation/ replacement project sibmitted by Providence
Water and has coneluded thaf the project.qualifies for & CATEGORICAL BXCLUSION
in nocordance with the requirements of RIGL 46-12.8 and 1he “Rules and Regulations
. pertaintng fo the Deinking Water Stafe Revolving Fiund”, dated March 1998, The
propossd project will not impact the environment sither by ftself or in combination with
other projects, end the information provided has met the.statutoty intent of the Federal
Clean Water Aot environmental réview requirements and is sufficient ta-issue a
CATEGORICAL EXCLUSION, ' ‘

Al

Project Namé: Rep‘l%ca Load Services, Replave or Reline Water,Maiﬁs
DWSRE Program Nugber; DWSRF 08-15 °

Proisct Locationt Providence Water's service area within the cities of Providenos,
_Cranstor, Johnston, and North Providenes, RT, ' . , ‘

replace 7% of the total number of lsad service Hhes annually up untdl the Hime all
(25,600) the lead service lines are replaced or until such time 111 accordance with the Lead
" and Copper Rula they meet the “L.éad Action Level”, and are nio longer required fo
replace load services at the current rate and regulatory terms and conditions, Tn-kind
water main replacement or watar main relining is also purt of Providence Water's Project,

&@@pﬁ@@ﬂ?@I&@éﬂtﬁLﬁ%&Q@ Impacts will be minor and shott term ini dusation - - -

(i.. erosion, dusf, nolse, air quality, and traffie),

Bpoecifie Raﬂmﬁx‘éng@uts: 1) A RIPDIS per:ﬁit be obtalued If the water nged to flush
the new main is to be discharged to t_he stovm draln system. '

.2) Shett-tetm excavation related impacts ahall be mitigated by wilizing standard
sedirrentation and erosion canirol methads, Fugitive dust related impaots shall be

: mitigéted-by_Llsiiig'S‘aa'nd,ggd dust contr-ol'mﬁ,d&. , L
' . K . T o, Aw/z//%ét//
L gy{é Swallow, P B, Chief
oo - @ffice of Drinking Wator Quatlty

: | 2/15/0¢
- FDATE -

Stete of fthodo lafsnd and Providence Plantations
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Please state your name and your position.

My name is Gregg M. Giasson and I am the Deputy General Manager of
Operations/Executive Engineer for the Providence Water Supply Board. I have general

oversight of the Engineering, Water Supply and Transmission & Distribution Departments.

Please describe your educational background and work experience.

I obtained a Masters of Science in Environmental Engineering from Worcester Polytechnic
Institute in 2001 and a Bachelof of Science in Civil Engineering from Tufts University in
1992. I have worked for the Providence Water Supply Board for three and a half years, the
first two years as the Senior Director of Operations and the last year and a half as the Deputy
General Manager of Operations/Executive Engineer. From 2008 to 2012, I worked for the
Pawtucket Water Supply Board as the Assistant Chief Engineer/Chief of Operations. Prior to
Pawtucket, I worked at the consulting firm Camp, Dresser & McKee for 12 years where 1
worked on a variety of drinking water projects as both a project engineer and project

manager. [ am a Registered Professional Engineer in the State of Rhode Island.
What is the primary use of the funds from this borrowing?
The funds for this borrowing will primarily be used for distribution water main rehabilitation.

What is the method for rehabilitation of the distribution water mains?

Providence Water utilizes two methods of distribution water main rehabilitation; (1)

complete replacement, or (2) cleaning and lining.

The replacement of water mains involves replacing the existing main in its entirety.
Cleaning & lining involves the scraping of the existing main, and the relining of the main

with cement mortar. The method of rehabilitation for a particular main depends on factors
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such as; (1) the condition of the main, (2) the location of the main (urban area versus rural

area), and (3) location and amount of other utilities.

How many miles of main does Providence Water plan on rehabilitating each year?
Since 1997, Providence Water has rehabilitated approximately 47 miles of water main in our
distribution system (See Exhibit GMG-1). The amount of main rehabilitated per year
increased significantly as part of the Consent Agreement made with the RIDOH in 2013. In
addition, a good portion of the water main in our distribution system is either at or beyond its
useful life. Consequently, on a perpetual basis, Providence Water will attempt to rehabilitate
a minimum of 10 miles of water main per year. As shown in Exhibit GMG-1, the cost per

foot to rehabilitate water main varies. This is due to several factors, including but not limited

to the following:

(1) the type of rehabilitation (replacement versus cleaning and lining);

(2) the amount of other utilities in the roadway;

(3) the amount of pavement restoration and police details;

(4) contractor availability and current economic conditions;

(5) the location of the work (urban area versus rural area); and

(6) the amount and type of services (copper versus lead).

As part of the design process, Providence Water analyzes the area where the main
rehabilitation 1s taking place and determines the best method for minimizing the cost per
foot. As of I'Y2015 (see Exhibit GMG-1), the average cost per foot for main rehabilitation

was approximately $232/foot. Therefore, if this cost applies in FY2018, Providence Water
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will accomplish ~14 miles of main rehab in FY2018. If the cost per foot is more, less main

will be rehabilitated, and vice versa.

Is Providence Water still under a Consent Agreement with the RIDOH?

At this time, no. Providence Water had previously entered into a Consent Agreement with
RIDOH because of Providence Water’s non-compliance with the Lead and Copper Rule
(LCR). However, Providence Water was below the Lead Action Limit (LAL) of 15 parts per
billion (ppb) for three consecutive 6-month semesters (January through June of 2015, July
through December of 2015, and January through June of 2016). As a result, Providence
Water was in compliance with the LCR and was not required to enter into a Consent
Agreement with RIDOH. We are still awajting the results of the current semester of July

through December of 2017.

Does Providence Water still replace lead service lines?

Yes. Providence Water will replace lead services as part of our main rehabilitation work. In
addition, outside of main rehabilitation work, Providence Water will replace the public side
(from the water main to the curb stop) of a lead service if a customer replaces their side of a

lead service (from the curb stop to the meter).

Mr. Gyiasson, does that conclude your testimony?

Yes, it does




Exhibit GMG-1
Main Rehabilitation FY1997 through FY2016

Total Main Total Main Total Main
Fiscal Year Rehabilitation Cost  Replaced (Feet) Replaced (Miles)  Cost per foot

1997 §770,100 7,700 1.5 S100
1998 $2,061,231 16,963 3.2 $122
1999

2000

2001 $365,998 1,759 0.3 $208
2002 $188,352 2,063 0.4 $91
2003

2004

2005 §225,521 2,943 0.6 $77
2006 $1,198,643 4,989 0.9 5240
2007

2008 §1,132,446 4,417 0.8 $256
2009 . S1,141,087 6,825 1.3 5167
2010 $1,449,485 7,330 14 5198
2011 $8,603,842 39,141 7.4 $220
2012 56,732,891 19,459 3.7 5345
2013 $8,690,291 35,275 6.7 $246
2014 513,929,440 45,553 8.6 $306
2015 511,430,705 55,102 104 5207
2016 515,665,467 67,205 12.7 5233

Totals 573,585,498 316,764 60 5232
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PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
TESTIMONY OF
MAUREEN E. GURGHIGIAN
November 2016
Please state your name and business address,
My name is Maureen E. Gurghigian and 1 am a Managing Director at First

Southwest Company’s Lincoln, Rhode Island office.

Please state your duties at First Southwest Company.

I provide financial advisory services to issuers of municipal debt, primarily in the
State of Rhode Island. In addition, I have supervisory responsibility for First
Southwest’s involvement with borrowings by numerous public agencies including
the Rhode Island Infrastructure Bank and approximately 20 Rhode Island
municipalities. The firm serves approximately 2000 municipal issuers, including
more than 400 in New England. The Rhode Island office assists clients with the

origination of more than $800 million in public financing issues annually.

Please describe your gualifications and experience.

I hold a Masters Degree in business administration from the University of Rhode
Island. I am a registered Municipal Principal with the Municipal Securities
Rulemaking Board, holding the following licenses: Series 52, Series 53 and Series
63. Prior to joining First Southwest in 2001, I worked in public finance for Fleet
Bank and/or Fleet Securities for 16 years, Before joining Fleet, I spent 8 years in
Rhode Island State Government, including four years as Director of the Governor’s

Policy Office under then Governor J. Joseph Garrahy.

Have you previously testified before the Public Utilities Commission and
Division of Public Utilities and Carriers?

Yes, [ have provided testimony before the Public Utilities Commission and the
Division of Public Utilities and Carriers (“Division”) on behalf of the Narragansett
Bay Commission, Woonsocket Water Division, Pawtucket Water Supply Board, the
City of Newport, Water Division and the Providence Water Supply Board

(“Providence Water™).
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PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
TESTIMONY OF
MAUREEN E. GURGHIGIAN
November 2016
Please describe your role in this proceeding.
I am providing assistance to Providence Water and its financing team with respect
to the issuance of debt through the Rhode Island Infrastructure Bank (“RIIB™). I

have been asked by Providence Water to provide information on the debt service

requirements for its proposed borrowing, and to respond to related questions.

inancing plans.

As set forth in its Application for Approval of Borrowing Authority, Providence
Water secks to obtain a loan in the amount of up to seventeen million dollars
($17,000,000), through revenue bonds sold by RIIB for the Rhode Island Safe
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) for financing continued
improvements to the distribution system including but not limited to the cleaning,
relining, repair and replacement of water mains, transmission lines, service lines,
and valves, and all attendant expenses (the “Project”). Nancy Parrillo has described
the project in her testimony, and I will provide the details of the financing for the

project.

Can you explain how the financing will werk for the $17,000,060 borrowing?
Yes. In accordance with the Safe Drinking Water Act Amendments of 1996, the
State of Rhode Island has created a Drinking Water State Revolving Fund
administered by the RIIB to provide financial assistance to water suppliers, This
fund uses federal capitalization grants and state matching funds to provide
subsidized (25% below market-rate) loans to water suppliers for qualifying projects
listed on the Project Priority List maintained by the Department of Health. The
RIIB sells bonds in the public market and loans the proceeds to its drinking water
borrowers pursuant to loan agreements. This project has been identified in
Providence Water’s capital program, and is listed on the Department of Healtlr’s
Project Priority I.ist. Therefore, this project is eligible for a subsidized DWSRF
loan through RIIB.
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PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
TESTIMONY OF
MAUREEN E. GURGHIGIAN
November 2016
What it is the term of this borrewing and the applicable interest rate?
The term is approximately 20 years from the projected completion of construction.
The expected interest cost will reflect a subsidized rate of 25% off the current
market rates. Based upon market conditions as of May 12, 2016, it is anticipated

that the loan will not exceed a market rate of 3.911%, which would result in a

projected subsidized rate of approximately 2.848%.

How will the funds from this borrowing be disbursed?

Approximately $15,000,000 will be available for Project funds, approximately
$1,172,794will be set aside in the debt service reserve fund, and approximately
$226,405 is allocated for costs of issuance, including rating agency fees, bond

counsel, financial advisor and trustee fees, and the RIIB origination fee.

What are the applicable schedules and deadlines for this financing?

This borrowing will be done when RIIB sells its revenue bonds for the DWSREF,
which is anticipated to take place in the first or second quarter of 2017. RIIB
requires that all borrower approvals be in place prior to mailing the RIIB

Preliminary Official Statement.

What is the projected schedule of debt service for the contemplated new
borrowings?

The projected debt service for the new borrowings is displayed in Schedule MG-1.
For the $17,000,000 debt, annual debt service is expected to increase by
approximately $1,180,000 per year at the projected interest rates. This amount is
subject to change based upon the actual project costs, draw schedule and prevailing

interest rates at the time of borrowing.

Does this complete your testimony? -

Yes it does.




Rhode island Infrastructure Bank
Safe Drinking Water Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2017
Rates as of 5/12/2016 Plus 100 BP - Preliminary Subject to Change

Calculation of Borrower Rate
Providence WSB - $16.398M DWSRF Agency Loan (A Rated, Revenue Pledge)

Barrower: Providence WSB  Highest Rating: A

Rata Lock Date: 06/10/16 MMD Scale:  Revenue-A

Closing Date: 03/08/47 Zerc% Subsidy:

Pladga; Revenue D3R Regquirad: Yes
Plus Total
Markat Less 25% Subsidized Loan Admin, Borrowar
Maturity Rate Subsidy Rate Rate Fee Billing Rate

2017 1.580% -0.400% 1.180% 1.190% 0.500% 1,690%
2018 1.850% -0.480% 1.390% 1.390% 0.500% 1.890%
2019 1.980% -0.500% 1.480% 1.490% 0.500% 1.880%
2020 2.170% -0.540% 1.630% 1.630% 0.500% 2.130%
2021 2.370% -0.590% 1.780% 1.780% 0.500% 2.280%
2022 2.560% -0.640% 1.820% 1.920% 0.500% 2,420%
2023 2.740% ~0.690% 2.050% 2.050% 0.500% 2.550%
2024 2.890% -0.720% 2.170% 2.170% 0.500% 2.670%
2025 3.090% -0.770% 2.320% 2.320% 0.500% 2.820%
2026 3.490% -0.870% 2.620% 2,620% 0.500% 3,120%
2027 3.720% -0.930% 2.790% 2.790% 0.500% 3.290%
2028 3.910% -0.980% 2.830% 2.830% 0.500% 3.430%
2029 4.040% -1.010% 3.030% 3.030% 0.500% 3.550%
2030 4.010% ~1.000% 3.010% 3.010% 0.500% 3.510%
2031 4.040% -1.010% 3.030% 3.030% 0,500% 3.530%
2032 4.070% -1.020% 3.050% 3.050% 0.500% 3.550%
2033 4.100% -1.030% 3.070% 3.070% 0.500% 3.570%
2034 4.120% -1.030% 3.090% 3.080% 0.500% 3.550%
2035 4.140% -1.040% 3.100% 3.100% 0.500% 3.600%
2036 4.170% -1.040% 3.130% 3.130% 0.500% 3.530%

FirstSouthwest | RIIB - DW2017 Providence WSB - Preliminary 5.10.16.xlsm
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Rhode Isiand Infrastructure Bank
Safe Drinking Water Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2017
Rates as of 5/12/2016 Plus 100 BP - Preliminary Subject to Change

Sources & Uses
Providence WSB - $16.399M DWSRF Agency Loan (A Rated, Revenue Pledge}

Sources:
Agency - Bond Proceeds 16,399,200.00
Direct Loan - State Match -
Diract Loan - State Match Repayments -
Fed Diract - 2015 Cap Grant -
Fed Direct - 2015 Cap Grant "Green" -
Fed Diract - Revenue Release Funds -
Fed Direct - De-Allocated List Funds -
Fed Direct - Prin Forglveness Funds -
Tota! Sources 186,399,200.00
Uses:
Agency Loan - Deposit to Genstruction Fund 15,000,000.00
Principal Forgiveness Funds -
Ceposit to DSRF . 1,172,794.36
Capitalized Interest -
Loan Origination Fee (1.0%) 163,992.00
Costs of Issuance - Local Level 62,413.64
Total Uses 16,390,200.00

[ Providence WSB - Agency Loan Statistics (Exclusive of Fees): ]

Weighted Average Maturity (Years) 11.38086
Market Yield on the Loan: 3.911%
Effective Yield* on Total Agancy Loan 2.848%
Net Effective Subsidy: 27.180%

*Effective Yield incorporates:
* 25% DWSRF Interest Rate Subsidy

FirstSouthwest | RIIB - DW2017 Providence WSB - Preliminary 6.10.16.xsm 6M10/2016 | Page 2




Rhode Island Infrasfructure Bank

Safe Drinking Water Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2017
Rates as of 5/12/2016 Plus 100 BP - Preliminary Subject to Change

Construction Fund Cash Flow

Providence WSB - $16.399M DWSRF Agency Loan (A Rated, Revenue Pledge)

Baginning Loan Proceeds
Date Balance Deposit

Cost of
Issuance

Agency Loan
Draws

DSRF &
Cap-l

Total
Draws

Ending Fund
Balance

5-Manth %
Const, Draws ~ Spent

03/08/17 - 18,399,200.00
0410117 15,000,000.00 .
05/01117  13,000,000.00 .
08/01/17  41,000,000.00 -
07/04/47  §,000,000.00 .
08/04/17  7,000,000,00 -
08/0117  5,000,000.00 .

1!\.‘!’\11 rd a nnn an I
LN PR ERGLSAV RV

1101417 1,000,000.00 -
1210117 - -
01/01/18 . -
02/01118 - -
03/01/18 - -
04/0118 - -
05/01/18 - -
06/01/18 - -
07/01/18 - -
08/01/18 - -
09/01/18 - -
10/01/18 - -
11/0118 - -
12/01/118 - -
010119 - -
02/01/18 - -
03/0119 - -
04/01119 - -
05/01/19 - -
06/01/18 - -
07/01118 - -
08/01/19 - -
08/01/19 - -
10701118 - -
11/01119 - -
12/01119 - -
01/01/20 - -
02/01/20 - -
03/01/20 - -
04/01/20 - -
05/01/20 - -
06/01/20 - -

226,405.64

2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.06

1,000,000.00

1,172794.36

1,398,200.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
2,000,000.00

1,000,000,00

16,399,200.00

226,405,584

15,000,000.00

1,172,794 36

16,389,200.00

FirstSouthwest | RIIB - DW2017 Providence WSB - Preliminary 6.10.18.xlsm
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Rhode Island Infrastructure Bank
Safe Drinking Water Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2017
Rates as of 5/12/2016 Plus 100 BP - Preliminary Subject to Change

Loan Balance
Providence WSB - $16.392M DWSRF Agency Loan (A Rated, Revenue Pledge)

Interest {1) Semiannual
Agency Loan  Agency Loan Accrued @ Interest Loan Fees @
Date Draws Balance 2,600% Requirements 0.500%

Semiannual
Loan Fees
Payable

03/08/17  4,399,200,00  1,399,200.00 - . ;
04/01/17  2,000,000.00  3,399,200.00 2,324,293 . 445.97
05/01/17  2,000,000.00  5,399,200.00 7,364.93 - 1,416.33
08/01/17  2,000,000.00  7,399,200.00 11,608.27 - 2,249.67
07/01/17  2,000,000.00  9,39%,200.00 18,031.50 . 3,083.00
08/01/17  2,000,000.00 11,389,200,00 20,364.93 - 3.016.33
09/01/17  2,000,000.00  13,399,200.00 24,698.27 82,482.23 4,749.67
10/01117  2,000,000.00 15,389,200.00 29,031.60 - 5,583.00
1140117 1,000,000.00  16,399,200,00 33,364.63 - £,416.33
1200117 - 18,399,200.00 35,531.60 - £,833.00
01/01/18 - 18,399,200.00 35,531.80 - 6,833.00
02/01/18 - 15,399,200.00 35,5531.60 - 8,833.00
03/01/18 - 18,399,200,00 35,531.60 204,522.93 6,833.00
04/01/18 - - - - -
05/01/18 - - . - -
06/01/18 . . . . -
07/01/18 - - - - -
08/01/18 - - - - -
09/01/18 - - . - -
10/01/18 - - - - -
11701418 - - . - .
12101118 - - - - -
01/01/18 - - - - -
02/01/19 - - . - -
02401719 - - - - -
04/01/19 - - - - -
05/01/19 - - . - -
0601719 . - . - -
07/01119 - - - - -
08/01/19 - - - - -
08101719 . - . . -
10/01/19 - - - - -
11/01/19 - - - - -
12/01/19 - - - - -
01/01/20 - - - - -
02/01/20 - - . - -
03/01/20 - - - - -
04/01/20 - - . - -
05/01/20 - - . - -
08/01/20 - - . - -

16,399,200,00 287,005,186 287,005,168 55,193,30

55, 193.3C

&M Interast rate represents the weighted average loan rate for the entire loan amortization.

FirstSouthwest | RIIB - DW2017 Providenca WSB - Praliminary 6.10.16.xlsm

810/2016 | Page 4




Rhode Island Infrastructure Bank ‘
Safe Drinking Water Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2017
Rates as of 5/12/2016 Plus 100 BP - Preliminary Subject to Change

Loan Debt Service
Providence WSB - $16.399M DWSRF Agency L.oan (A Rated, Revenue Pladge)

Net Total Annual
Loan (1) Feas @ Total Fess Net Debt Net Debt
Date Principal Rate Interest 0.500% & Interest Service Service & Feas
03/08/17 -
0801117 - 1.180% 8248223 15,861.87 88,344.20 98,344.20 95,344.20
03/01/18 - - 204,522.83 38,331,33 243 854,26 243,854.28 -
08/01/18 673,000.00 1.380% 212,868.18 40,998.00 253,867.18 926,867.18  1,170,721.44
03/01H9 - - 208,1981.83 38,315.50 247 507.33 247,507.33 -
09/01/19 686,000.00 1.480% 208,181.83 39,315.80 247,507.33 933,507.33 1,181,014 .68
03/01720 - - 203,081.13 37,600.50 240,631.63 240,681,683 -
09/01/20 £89,000,00 1.630% 203,081.13 37,600.50 240,681.63 9390,681.63 1,180,363 .28
03/01/21 - u 187,384.28 35,853.00 233,237.28 233,237.28 B
09/01/21 714,000.00 1.780% 197,384.28 35,853.00 233,237.28 947,237.28 1,180,474.56
03/01/22 - - 191,028.68 34,068.00 225,097.68 225,007.68 -
09/01/22 730,000.00 1,920% 191,029,868 34,068,00 225 087,65 955,097.68 1,180,195.36
03/01/23 - - 184,021.68 32,243.00 216,264.68 215,284.68 -
09/01/23 748,000.00 2.050% 184,021.68 32,243.00 216,264.68 964 25468 1,180,529,38
03/01/24 n - 176,354 .68 30,373.00 208,727.€8 205 727,68 -
09/01/24 767,000.00 2.170% 176,354.68 30,373.00 206,727 68 973,727.68 1,180,455.35
03/01/25 - - 168,032.73 28,4585.50 196,488.23 166,486.23 -
09/01/25 788,000.00 2.320% 168,032.73 28,455.50 196,488,238 084 488,23  1,180,976.45
03/01/26 - - 158,891.83 26,485,50 185,377.43 185,377.43 -
05/01/26 810,000.00 2.620% 155,891.93 26,485.50 185,377.43 995 377,43 1,180,754.86
03/01/27 - - 148,280.93 24,460.50 172,741.43 172,741.43 -
09/01/27 835,000.00 2.790% 148,280,693 24,480.50 172,741.43 1,007.741.43 1,180,482.88
03/01/28 - - 136,632.88 22,373.00 159,005.68 159,005,68 -
09/01/28 883,000.00 2.8930% 136,632.68 22,373.00 159,005.88 1,022 005.68 1,181,011.36
03/01/29 - - 123,989.73 20,215.50 144,205,23 144,2056.23 -
08/01/29 892, 000.00 3.030% 123,989.73 20,215.50 144,205,23  1,038,205.23  1,180,410.46
03/01/30 - - 110,475.93 17,985,50 128,4681.43 128,461.43 -
09/01/30 924,000.00 3.010% 110,475.93 17,985.50 128,461.43 1,0582,461.43 1,180,922.86
03/01/31 - - 06,569,73 15,675.50 112,245.23 112,245.23 -
09/01/31 958,000.00 3.030% 96,589.73 15,675,50 112,24523  1,068,245.23 1,180,490.46
03/01/32 - - 82,086.33 13,285,560 95,371.83 95,371.83 -
09/01/32 £90,000,00 3.050% 52,086.33 13,285.50 95,371.83 1,085,371.83 1,180,743.66
03/01/33 - - 65,988.83 10,810.50 77,789.33 77,799.33 "
09/01/33 1,025,000.00 3.070% 65,888.83 10,810.50 77,799.33 1,102,729.33 1,180,598.66
03/01/34 - - 51,255.08 8,248.00 58,503.08 58,503.08 -
09/01/34 1,062,000.00 3.090% 51,255.08 8,248,00 59,503.08 1,121,5603.08 1,181,006.16
03/01/35 - - 3484718 5,593.00 40,440.18 40,440.18 "
09/01/35 1,100,00C.00 3.100% 34,847.18 5,593.00 40,440.18  1,140,440.18 1,180,880.36
03/01/38 - - 17,797.18 2,843.00 20,640.18 20,640.18 -
09/01/38 1,137,200,00 3.130% 17,797.18 2,843.00 20,840.18 1,167,840.18 1,178,480.36
16,399,200.00 5,211,607 42 907,858.20 6,119.856.72 D22 518,886,772 22,518,856.72

(1) interest during censtruction [s calcudated based on the timing of expected draws and the overall weighted average loan rate of 2.600%.
(2) Minimum principal amertization |s requirad before Construction Fund is completely drawn.
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APPENDIX A

RESOLUTION
OF THE
PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD

A Resolution of the City of Providence Water Supply Board expressing the intention
of the Board to reimburse expenditures from the proceeds of the Notes, Bonds, or
Loans for certain Infrastructure Improvements and to provide an effective date.

WHEREAS, the City of Providence Water Supply Board (the Board) is an agency of
the City of Providence, Rhode Island and owns and operates a Water Supply system
(the System); and

WHEREAS, the Board desires to make certain improvements to the Board's
distribution system and appurtenances thereto, including but not limited to the
cleaning, relining, repair and replacement of water mains, transmission lines, service
lines and valves (the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Board to borrow funds in an amount, not to exceed
cighteen million dollars ($18,000,000) for the Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:

o "This Resolution is an affirmative action of the Board towards
the issuance of Bonds, Notes, or Loans through the RI Infrastructure Bank and/or
other funding avenues. This resolution constitutes the Board’s declaration of official
intent pursuant to Treasury Regulation 1.150-2 to reimburse the Board’s funds and
accounts for certain infrastructure expenditures paid on or after the date which is
sixty (60) days prior to the date of this resolution but prior to the issuance of the
Bonds, Notes, or Loans.

K That the Board authorizes the General Manager to borrow
through the Rhode Island Infrastructure Bank and/or any other funding avenues for
the Project.

< This resolution shall take effect upon passage.

The above and foregoing was duly adopted and approved at a meeting of the City of
Providence Water Supply Board as held on April 20, 2016 by vote of the members of

the Providence Water Supply Board present.
g N/
(_/CUL{/&J . % VKA/GJ"UJ/( (‘/é

Carissa R. Richard, Secretary
Providence Water Supply Board

------ e VS
C"//’(:f"-—w«' ‘-_’f D

Xagkham Khamsyvoravong, Chairman
Providence Water Supply Board




PROVIDENCE WATER

Comparison of Interest Rates

Source
Market Rate (AIC) (1)
Total Interest Payments (2)
Subsized Rate (AIC) (1)
Total Interest Payments (2)

Savings:
Interest Rate
Interest Payments

Interest Rate Savings/Market Rate

Prepared by First Southwest
(1) From page 1 on the attached schedules
(2) From page 5 on the attached schedules

Interest Rate 1

3.911%
$ 7,187,373

2.8480%
$ 5,211,697

1.0630%
$ 1,975,676

27.180%

APPENDIX B
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PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014
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MARCUM

. ACCOUNTANTS &« ADVISCORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Providence Water Supply Board

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Providence Water Supply Board
(Water Supply Board) of the City of Providence, Rhode Island, as of and for the years ended
June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or etror, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

)]

WMARCUMGROUF

MEMBER

Marcum iir = 155 South Main Street = Sulie 100  Providence, Rhode Isiand 02503 o Phone 401.457.8700 W Fax 401 AS7.6701 & waw.marcumip.com




Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the Water Supply Board, as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and
the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

Presentation

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the Water Supply Board, are intended to
present the financial position, the changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows
of only that portion of the business-activities of the City of Providence that are attributable to the
transactions of the Water Supply Board. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the
financial position of the City of Providence as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, the changes in its
financial position, or where applicable, its cash flows for the years ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.

Change in Method of Accounting for Pensions

As discussed in Note 9 to the financial statements, the Water Supply Board changed its method
for accounting and financial reporting for pensions as a result of the adoption of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions — an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and GASB Statement No.71, Pension
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date. As discussed in Note
11 to the financial statements, Management analyzed GASB No. 68 and determined that the
beginning net position has been restated by $41,356,974 to include the net pension liability as of
June 30, 2014. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Prior Period Financial Statements

As described in Note 11, net position at June 30, 2014 has been restated for the elimination of a
prior year liability. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, Schedules of Funding Progress, Funding Status, Changes
in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios, Contributions and Investment Returns, on pages 4-8
and 36-38, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
informatijon in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our

2




inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance,

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April
1, 2016, on our consideration of the Water Supply Board’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the Water Supply Board’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Woareusn LLP

Providence, R1
April 1, 2016




PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30,2015 AND 2014

The management of the Water Supply Board (the “Water Supply Board”) offers readers of our financial
statements the following narrative overview and analysis of our financial activities for the years ended June 30,
2015 and 2014,

Financial Statements

Our financial statements are prepared using proprietary fund (enterprise fund) accounting that uses the same
basis of accounting as private-sector business enterprises. Under this method of accounting an economic resources
measurement focus and the acerual basis of accounting are used.

Revenue is recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred. The financial statements
include statements of net position, statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and statements of
cash flows. These statements are followed by notes to the financial statements.

s  The statements of net position present information on the assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position, Over time, increases or decreases in
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Water
Supply Board is improving or deteriorating.

* The statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position report the operating
and non-operating reverues and expenses of the Water Supply Board for the fiscal year
with the difference — the net income or loss — being combined with any capital
contributions to determine the change in net position for the fiscal year. That change
combined with the previous year-end net position total reconciles to the net posiiion at
the end of the fiscal year.

*  The statements of cash flows report cash and cash equivalents activity for the fiscal year
resulting from operating activities, non-capital financing activities, capital and related
financing activities, and investing activities. The net result of these activities added to the
beginning of the year cash balance reconciles to the cash and cash equivalents balance at
the end of the fiscal year.

e




) : PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD :
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

Condensed Financial Information (in thousands)

Condensed Financial Information

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
TOTAL ASSETS

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LONG -TERM LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOW CF RESOURCES
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

NET POSITICN:
NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS
RESTRICTED FUND
UNRESTRICTED FUND
TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
DEPRECIATION

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES INCLUDING DEPRECIATION

OPERATING INCOME
NON OPERATING EXPENSE
CAPITAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS

NET POSITION

Note:

(1) The 2615 Unrestricted fund reflects implementation of the GASB No 68 and pricr year adjustment, See Footnote #11

2013 2014 2015
§ 5137146 § 50,845,457 56,860,208
295,298,057 299,812,331 317,261,613
9303 § 350,657,788 374,121,811
§ 14108844 $ 9,328,198 13,498,670
78,321,740 75,559,279 123,484,780
82,430,584 85,487,477 136,983,450

1,997,614 2,709,308
1,997,014 2,709,308
217,211,421 25,543,538 239,087,594
31,511,583 32,410,386 36,145,158
3,518,701 4,507,079 (38,094301) 1)

S 250241705 §  2@A61003 § 237138461
$  BL069674 5 62,872,231 69,231,217
38,040,000 41,750,117 43,179,067
12,263,983 12,643,922 11,313,363
50,303,983 54,394,039 54,492,430
10,765,691 8,478,192 14,738,787
(1,593,191) (1,562,404) (1,811,838}
2,099,550 3,303,600 1,098,257
S 11272088 § 10219298 14,025,206




PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

Financial Highlights

During the year, the Water Supply Board had operating revenues that exceeded operating expenses by $14.7
millien. This is primarily due to rate relief to support the continved commitment to the replacement of aging
infrastructure, careful management of operating costs, and unexpended revenues allocated for restricted funds, Total
assets were $374.1 million, up $23.5 million from last year’s total assets of $350.6 million. Current assets,
principally cash, increased by $4.9 million, and net plant increased by $17 million,

The Water Supply Board’s net position totaled $237.1 million at June 30, 2015, a decrease of $25.3 million from
June 30, 2014, The decrease is the result of recording the net pension liability in the amount of $41.3 million to
reflect implementation of GASB Statement No.68. Also, reflected in the change to our net position is net operating
income of $14.7 million, net non-operating expenses of $1.8 million, capital contributions of $1.1 million, and a

prior period adjustment of $2 million.

At June 30, 2014, the Water Supply Board’s net position totaled $ 262.4 million. This net position was
restated as of July 1, 2014 to $221.1 million reflecting the implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, Total assets
were $351 million at June 30, 2014, an increase of $4 miilion from the prior year’s total assets of $347 million.

The Water Supply Board’s total operating revenues were $69.5 million for fiscal year 2013, an increase of
$6.6 million over prior year's revenues of $62.9 million. Total operating expenses of the water system amounted to
$54.8 million, which is slight increase over the prior year’s amount of $54.4 million. The increase in revenue in
2015 was atfributable 1o the increase in rates authorized by the RI Public Utilities Commission (PUC) in December
2013, Fiscal year 2015 represents the first full fiscal year which reflects that inerease in rates. Fiscal year 2015 non-
operating revenue, principally interest, amounted to $324,754, and non-operating expense of $2.1 million was
principally interest on long-term debt. Capital grants and contributions in fiscal year 2015 amounted to $1.1 million.

The Water Supply Board’s total operating revenues were $62.9 for fiscal year 2014, an increase of §1.8
million over prior year’s revenues of $61.1 million. The total operating expenses of the water system were $54.4
million in fiscal year 2014, This resulted in a net operating income of $8.5 million, Fiscal year 2014 non-operating
revenue, principally interest, amounted to $314,637, and non-operating expense of $1.9 million was principally
interest on long-term debt, Capital grants and contributions in fiscal year 2014 amounted to $3.3 million. This
resulted in an increase in net position of $10.2 million in fiscal year 2014, and a reported net position of $262.5
million at June 30, 2014. This net position was restated as of July 1, 2014 to $223 million reflecting the
implementation of GASB Statement No. 68 and a prior period adjustment.

The increase in revenue in fiscal year 2014 as compared to fiscal year 2013 was attributable to an approved
increase in rates authorized by the RI Public Utilities Commission across all classes of the Water Supply Board
customers effective December 2013,

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets:

At June 30, 2015, the Water Supply Board had $317.3 miliion invested in various capital assets, including
land, buildings and improvements, transinission and distribution mains, reservoirs, services, hydrants and
appurtenances, machinery and equipment, and construction work in progress. This amount reprcsents a nef ingrease
in capital assets of $17.4 million, or 5.8%, over the prior year. -

At June 30, 2014, the Water Supply Board had $299.8 million invested in various capital assets. This
amount represented a net increase of $4.5 million, or 1,5%, over the previous year,




: PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

Capital Assets and Debt Administration (Continued)

Major project expenditures in fiscal year 2015 included (in millions):

* Replace and Upgrade water mains $14.40
+ Replace Sand Filters $ 560
¢ Plant influent and aerator rehabilitation $ 330
* Sludge handling/disposal $ 100
¢ Aerated, settled and filter influent conduits $ 0.66
+ Various Distribution System Improvements $ 056
+ Install Transmission Mains (W. Cranston) $ 050
+ Treatment Process Studies $ 0438
+ Replace Fire Hydrants $ 0438
+ Unidirectional Flushing (UDF) Program Development $ 047
4+ 90" Influent Conduit —Inspection $ 0.44
* Replace Lead Services $ 037
+ Administration Building Site Design/Land Acquisition $ 037
+ Replace Distribution Valve $ 032
+ Aqueduct Reservoir Replace the 60” Valve $ 031

The Water Supply Board’s fiscal year 2015 capital budget inctuded project expenditures of $27.1 million for
infrastructure and capital projects. The major projects were: water main replacements and upgrades, treatment plant
filter replacements, plant influent and aerator upgrades, sludge removal and disposal, source water improvements,
aerated settled and filter conduits, various distribution system improvements and instailing transmission mains in
Western Cranston. The majority of infrastructure projects are financed on a pay-as-you-go, cash basis from rate
revenues. Some projects were funded from bond proceeds issued in fiscal year 2015, New capital additions, that
will benefit ratepayers for many years, are generally funded with long-term debt financing.

Debt

At June 30, 2015, the Water Supply Board had $78.2 million in bonds and notes outstanding versus $74.3
million in the previous year. This represented an increase of $3.9 million or 5%. A new $8.0 million bond was
issued in 2015 to fund various water main improvements,

At June 30, 2014, the Water Supply Beard had $74.3 million in bonds and notes outstanding versus $78
million in the previous year, This represented a decrease of $3.7 million, or 5%. No new debt was issued in 2014,

Subsequent Evenis:

The Water Supply Board scught and received approval from the RI Division of Public Utilities (the
Division) to borrew $30 million from the RI Infrastructure Bank to finance the purchase and renovation of a new
Central Operating Facility (COF). The Division’s approval for this bartowing was the basis of rate relief authorized
by the PUC that will generate additional revenue of $2.1 million per year to fund the debt service associated with
this borrowing.




PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLLAND)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

Subsequent Events (continued):

On December 17, 20135, the Water Supply Board enfered into a bond purchase agreement with the RI
Infrastructure Bank o obtain the $30 million in bond proceeds to purchase and renovate its new Central Operating
Facility located at 125 DuPont Drive, Providence Rhode Island. The new facility will allow the Water Supply Board
to consolidate its two administrative locations into one facility. The Water Supply Board will continue its treatment
operation at its plant in Scituate. The new facility will go through extensive renovations over the next 15 months
with plans to occupy the facility in the spring 0f 2017,

On December 28, 2013, the Water Supply Board purchased the aforementioned building at 125 Dupont
Drive.

Union Contract:

The labor force of the Water Supply Board, with the exception of management, is covered by a unicn
contract which is effective for the period January 1, 2011 to June 38, 2015, A new contract was in negotiations at
fiscal year-end and subsequently approved by the union and City. The new contract is effective for the period of July
1, 2015 through June 30, 2018,

Contacting The Water Supply Board’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our customers, investors and creditors with a general overview of
the Water Supply Board’s finances and to illustrate the Water Supply Board’s accountability for the monies it
receives. I you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, please contact the Finance
Department at the Water Supply Board, 552 Academy Avenue, Pravidence, RI 02908,




PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD |
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND)

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

Assets

Current Unrestricted Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3)

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible
accounts of $1,247,078 in 2015 and $1,516,982 in 2014

Accounts receivable ~ unbilled
Inventory
Other assets

Total Current Unrestricted Assets

Current Restricted Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3)
Investments (Note 3)
Accounts receivable

Total Current Restricted Assets

Total Current Assets

Capital Assets (Note 4)
Land
Building and improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Scituate Reservoir Project
Construction in progress

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
Total Capital Assets, Net

Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Deferred outflows of resources (Note 9)

Total Assets

2015 2014
4,796,887 5,935,190
6,332,160 6,620,177
3,441,854 3,258,843
826,530 879,812
300,455 31,703
15,697,886 16,725,725
33,354,104 27,147,017
6,634,910 6,960,501
16,959 12,214
40,005,973 34,119,732
55,703,859 50,845,457
22,613,760 21,958,397
84,679,611 79,135,020
311,430,903 297,055,247
31,586,324 30,877,466
18,681,695 18,681,695
55,087,340 47,609,161
524,079,633 495,316,986
206,818,020 195,504,655
317,261,613 299,812,331
1,156,442 -
374,121,914 350,657,788

The accompanying notes arve an.integral part of these financial statements.
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- PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD - :
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISL.AND)

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5)
Due to City of Providence General Fund (Note 6)
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Amounts to be Paid from Current Restricted
Assets (Note 2)
Due to Water Resources Board
Accounts payable

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

General revenue bonds (Note 5)

Net pension liability (Note 9)

Other post employment benefits (Note 10)
Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resouirces
Unavailable revenues from impact fees (Note 9)

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

2015 2014
4,628,807 4,094,775
1,394,422 1,377,649
1,231,083 410,797
2,383,551 2,335,631
9,637,863 8,218,852

400,400 268,312
3,460,405 1,441,034
3,860,805 1,709,346

13,498,668 9,928,198
73,545,212 70,174,018
43,268,573 -
6,671,000 5,385,261
123,484,785 75,559,279
136,983,453 85,487,477
- 2,709,308
239,087,594 225,543,538
36,145,168 32,410,386
(38,094,301) 4,507,079

$ 237,138,461

$ 262,461,003

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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5 - PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

Operating Revenues
Charges for services:
Water sales (Note 1):
General customers
Other local water suppliers
Fire protection services
Maintenance charges and other revenue
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Source of supply
Pumping operations
Water treatment
Transmission and distribution
Charge for services provided by other City
departments (Note 6)
Customer accounts and service
Administrative and general
Depreciation
Property taxes - other local governments
Total Operating Expenses

Net Operating Income
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income
Interest expense and other
Net Non-operating Expenses

Capital Grants and Contributions

Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning of Year (as Restated) (Note 11)

Net Position - End of Year

2015

2014

$ 46,859,419

$ 41,728,477

17,732,754 16,852,460
2,308,161 2,083,816
2,330,883 2,207,478

69,231,217 62,872,231
2,654,218 2,678,278

724,018 638,487
8,227,250 8,643,838
5,086,495 5,207,017

839,167 839,167
3,593,203 3,340,891

15,031,845 13,480,801

11,313,363 12,643,922
7,022,781 6,921,638

54,492 430 54,394,039

14,738,787 8,478,192

324,754 314,637

(2,136,592) (1,877,131)

(1,811,838) (1,562,494)
1,098,257 3,303,600

14,025,206 10,219,298

223,113,255 252,241,705

$ 237,138,461

$ 262,461,003

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash received from customers $ 69,062,726 $§ 65,904,184
Cash paid to vendors (25,137,957 (28,264,414)

Cash paid to employees

(13,610,390)

(12,714,891)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 30,314,379 24,924,879
Cash Flows From Non-Capital and Related Financing Activities

Receipts from or (payments to)} other funds 16,773 (418,193)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Capital and Related Financing 16,773 {(418,193)

Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities

Interest and issuance costs paid on debt
Proceeds from line of credit
Repayment of long-term debt

(2,136,592)

(4,094,774)

(1,877,131)
(3.000,000)
(3,817,843)

Proceeds from long-term debt 8,000,000 -
Capital grants 1,098,257 3,303,600
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Capital and Related Financing > 866.891 (5,391,374)

Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

(28.779,604)

{17,158,1906)

Purchase of investment securities (500,409 (350,000)
Redemption of investment securities 826,000 —
Investment income (loss) 324,754 314,637
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (28,129,259 (17,183,559
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,068,784 1,921,753
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning 33,082,207 31,160,454
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending 38,150,991 § 33,082,207
Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,796,887 3% 5,935,190
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 33,354,104 27,147,017
38,150,991 8§ 33,082,207
Reconciliation of Net Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Qperating Activities: .
Net operating income 14,738,787 §% 8,478,192
Adjustments to reconcile net operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 11,313,363 12,643,922
Change in allowance for doubtful accounts (269,904} 51,556
Pension expense 755,157 -
- Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 370,165 3,012,100
Inventories 53,282 (234,411)
Other assets (268,752) (31,703)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 4,305,404 292,929
Unearned revenue (683,123) 712,294
Net cash provided by operating activities 30,314,379 § 24,924,879

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

REPORTING ENTITY

The Water Supply Board, an enterprise fund of the City of Providence, (the “Water Supply
Board”) was created in 1940 by Chapter 832 of the Public Laws of the State of Rhode Island.
Membership of the Water Supply Board is comprised of four persons appointed by the

Mayor, who serve for four-year staggered terms and two City Council members elected by

the City Council who serve during their four-year City Council term. The Finance Director
of the City of Providence also serves as an ex-officio Water Supply Board member.

The Water Supply Board provides water supply services through metered sales in Providence
and parts of the surrounding communities of North Providence, Johnston and Cranston. The
Water Supply Board also sells water to other local water supply systerns on a wholesale
basis, The Water Supply Board’s source of water supply is the Scituate Reservoir, located in
the Town of Scituate, Rhode Island, and five tributary reservoirs,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The Water Supply Board is considered an enterprise fund of the City of Providence (the
“City”). The operations of the Water Supply Board are accounted for with a separate set of
self-balancing accounts organized on a Proprietary Fund type (Enterprise Fund) basis.

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that
the costs (including depreciation) of providing goods and services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the
governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses
incurred, and/or change in net position is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability, or other purposes.

The Water Supply Board utilizes the accrual basis of accounting, under which revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred regardless of the timing
of the related cash flows.

REGULATIONS AND OPERATIONS

The Water Supply Board is subject, as to rates and other matters, to the regulatory authority
of the State of Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission (“PUC?).
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PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2615 AND 2014

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Water Supply Board considers all highly liquid instruments with an original maturity of
three months or less, when purchased, to be cash equivalents.

INVESTMENTS

The Water Supply Board accounts for investments at fair values which are established by
quoted market prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for
identical, unrestricted assets. Fair value is defined as the price that two parties are willing to
pay to acquire an asset or settle a liability in an orderly transaction in the market place.

INVENTORY

Inventory, consisting of materials and supplies, is valued at the lower of average cost or
market using the first-in, first-out method.

CAPITAL ASSETS, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Capital assets owned by the Water Supply Board are stated at cost and are defined as assets
with an initial cost of more than $3,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of 1 year.
Depreciation and amortization is provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Building, Source of supply structures and improvements 5-75 years
Improvements other than buildings 3-75 years
Equipment 3-50 years

Depreciation expense is not reflected for construction in progress until such time as it is
placed in service. Assets under capital leases are amortized under the Water Supply Board’s
normal depreciation policies for similar assets.

RESTRICTED FUNDS FOR CONSTRUCTION OF ASSETS
Restricted funds for construction of assefs represent unexpended revenue bond proceeds

obtained specifically for construction of water facilities, as well as revenues restricted for
capital improvements by the PUC. These funds are included in restricted assets.
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PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Capital contributions consist of property and equipment paid for by customers for water
installations. Once the installation is complete, the property and equipment transfers to the
Water Supply Board at fair value.

IrvpracT FEES

The impact fees assessment was established in 1996 when the Water Supply Board acquired
the water distribution system in the City of Cranston. As part of the agreement for the
acquisition, the Water Supply Board assumed all operation obligation, benefits, and assets,
and debt service related to the water distribution system, and created an impact fee agreement
with the City of Cranston. In accordance with the City of Cranston ordinance, impact fee for
the water system improvement must be set aside by the City of Cranston and paid to the
Water Supply Board or deducted from the debt services the Water Supply Board pays to the
City of Cranston.

The impact fee is assessed by the City of Cranston based on the agreement with the Water
Supply Board. If new water systems facilities are required to serve areas where no water
system presently exists, the Water Supply Board will collect a subdivision processing fee,
and the City of Cranston will collect a water impact fee for the benefit of the Water Supply
Board as follows: 1) residential $1,352 per unit; 2) industrial and commercial $6,003 per
acre. The Water Supply Board in turn agreed to use the said impact fee solely for the purpose
of construction of new water system facilities required to serve areas where no water system
presently exists. In 2015, the $2,026,185 in fees that had been collected was recognized by
the Water Supply Board as revenue.

REVENUES, OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Revenues include amounts billed and unbilled to all customers, including those customers
outside the City of Providence, Rhode Island. All billed charges are based on rates approved
by the PUC. Revenues for unbilled amounts to general customers are estimated based on
billing amounts subsequent to year-end. The Water Supply Board distinguishes operating
revenues and expenses from non-operating. Operating revenues result from charges to
customers for water and related services, Operating expenses include the cost of operations,
maintenance, sales and service, administrative expenses and depreciation. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating or capital contributions.
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PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 36, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Water Supply Board’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit
risk consist primarily of accounts receivable. Exposure to losses on receivables is principally
dependent on each customer’s financial condition. Concentration of credit risk with respect
to receivables is limited due to the large number of customers. The Water Supply Board
monitors its exposure for credit losses and maintains allowances for anticipated losses.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Employees accumulate sick leave hours for subsequent use or for payment upon retirement,
Sick leave and vacation may be carried forward into the following calendar year, but not to
exceed 135 days and 30 days, respectively.

Vested sick leave and accumulated vacation leave are recorded as expenses and liabilities as
the benefits accrue to employees.

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In addition to assets, the statement of net position can report deferred outflows of resources.
Deferred outflow of resources represents a consumption of net position, that apply to a future
period which will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until that later date.
At June 30, 2015 the Water Supply Board reports deferred outflows relfated to pension in the
statement of net position. A deferred outflow of resources related to pension results from
differences between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions or other inputs,
These amounts are deferred and included in pension expense in a systematic and rational
manner over a period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all
employees that are provided with benefits through the pension plan (active employees and
inactive employees).
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" PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES (CONTINUED)

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position can report deferred inflows of
resources. Deferred inflows of resources represent the acquisition of net position that applies
to a future period and which will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until
a later date. A deferred inflow of resources related to pemsion results from differences
between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions or other inputs. These
amounts are deferred and included in pension expense in a systematic and rational manner
over a period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees
that are provided with benefits through the pension plan (active employees and inactive
employees).

NOTE 2 - RESTRICTED ASSETS

The State of Rhode Island enacted the Public Drinking Water Protection Act of 1987 (the
“Act”) that empowers suppliers of public drinking water to levy a surcharge (the
“surcharge™) of one cent ($0.01) per hundred gallons of water for all customers. The
surcharge has been amended several times since 1987. The last increase was on July 1, 2002,
when the surcharge increased to $0.0292 per hundred gallons of water for all customers. Of
those collected funds, the Water Supply Board will retain 36.1% of the surcharge in its Water
Quality Protection fund, remit 57.0% to the State Water Resources Board and retain 6.9% for
general operations. The funds collected in the Water Quality Protection fund are to be
expended in the following manner:

1) at a minimum, 55% of the funds are to be spent for the acquisition of land
or land rights or physical improvements to acquired land to protect the
quality of the raw water of the water supply system;

2) 35% may be used to acquire a fee simple interest or a conservation
restriction that directly protects the quality and safety of the public
drinking water supply; and

3} 10% may be used by the supplier for any purpose relating to its operations.

The restricted investments are pooled with the cash and cash equivalents and investments of

other funds maintained by the City of Providence. The earnings from investments are
allocated in proportion to each fund’s balance.
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PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISL.AND)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The following is a summary of cash and investments:

Fair
Value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,796,887
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 33,354,104
Equity Mutual Funds 6,634,910
Total $ 44,785,901

Responsibility for custodial credit risk of deposits, investment risk, interest rate risk and
concentration of investments rests with the City. However, the deposits for the Water Supply
Board are supported by collateralization agreements with its main banking institutions.
These agreements collateralize the deposits at 102%, Of the cash and cash equivalent
balances of $38,150,991, $250,000 is covered by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC) insurance and $4,347,156 is uncollateralized.

INTEREST RATE RISK

This is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of
its fair value to changes in market interest rates. Information about the exposure of the
entity’s debt type investments to this risk using the segmented time distribution model is as
follows:

Investment Maturities {in Years)

Fair Less Than 1-5 6-10 Over No
Type of Investment Value 1Year . Years Years 10 Years maturity
Equity Mutual Funds $ 6,634,910 $ $ $ $ $ 6,634,910
TOTAL $ 6,634,910 $ - § - 8 - 8 - § 6,634,910

CREDIT RISK
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of a debt type investment will not fulfill its
obligation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by assignment of a rating of a
nationally recognized rating organization. Mutual Funds holding U.S. government securities
or obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government are not considered to have credit
risk exposure.
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o PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD -
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF INVESTMENTS

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest
priotity to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level
1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3), The three levels of the fair value
hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are described as follows:

Level 1:  Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical
assets or liabilities in active markets that the Plan has the ability to access.

Level 2:  Inputs to the valuation methodology include:

»  Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

» Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;

* Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable {or the asset or liability;

s Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by
correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be
observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair
value measurements.

The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based
on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation
techniques maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs,

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair
value. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at December 31, 2015 and
2014,

Mutual funds: Valued at the daily closing price as reported by the fund. Mutual funds
held by the Water Supply Board are open-ended mutual funds that are registered with the

 SEC. These funds are required to publish their daily net asset value (NAV) and to
transact at that price. The mutual funds held by the Water Supply Board are deemed to be
actively traded on a public exchange. All mutual funds are considered Level 1
investments at December 31, 2015 and 2014.
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-PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of the activity in capital assets as of June 30, 2015:

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land
Scituate Reservoir Project
Construction in progress

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Buildings and improverments
Improverments other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation for:;
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net

Total Capital Assets, Net

Balance Disposals Balance
June 30,2014  Additions /Reclasses  June 30, 2015
$ 21958397 $§ 655363 % - § 22,613,760

18,681,695 - - 18,681,695

47,609,161 24,438,961 16,960,782 55,087,340

88,249,253 25,094,324 16,960,782 96,382,795

79,135,020 5,544,591 - 84,679,611

207,055,247 14,375,656 - 311,430,903
30,877,466 708,858 - 31,586,324
407,067,733 20,629,105 - 427696,838
55,267,185 6,207,747 - 61,474,932
113,064,008 4,367,715 -~ 117.431,723
27,173,462 737,903 -- 27,911,365
195,504,655 11,313,365 - 206,818,020
211,563,078 9,315,740 ~ 220,878,818
$299,812,331 § 34410064 $ 16,960,782 $ 317,261,613
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PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 306, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The following is a summary of the activity in capital assets as of June 30, 2014

Balance Disposals Balance
June 30, 2013 Additions /Reclasses  June 30, 2014
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land $ 21,918296 $ 40,101 § - $ 21,958,397
Scituate Reservoir Project 18,681,695 - -- 18,681,695
Construction in progress 61,726 417 15,173,778 29,291,034 47,609,161
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 102,326,408 15,213,879 29,291,034 88,249,253
Capital Assets Being Depreciated: :
Buildings and improvements 74,388,265 4,819,992 73,237 79,135,020
Improvements other than buildings 270,994,006 26,061,241 - 297,055,247
Machinery and equipment 30,450,111 427,355 - 30,877,466
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 375,832,382 31,308,588 73,237 407,067,733
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 48,420,614 6,846,571 - 55,267,185
Improvements other than buildings 108,384,312 4,679,696 - 113,064,008
Machinery and equipment 26,055,807 1,117,655 ~ 2713462
182,860,733 12,643,922 - 195,504,655
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 192,971,649 18,664,666 73,237 211,563,078
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 295,298,057 $ 33878545 $ 29364271 $299,812,331
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PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 36, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt activity for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

2015
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year
Bonds Payable:

Revenue bonds § 74,268,793 $§ 8,000,000 $ (4,094,774) § 78,174,019 § 4,628,807
Total Bonds 74,268,793 8,000,000 (4,094,774) 78,174,019 4,628,807
Total Long-Term Debt § 74,268,793 § 8,000,000 $ (4,094,774) § 78,174,019 § 4,628,807

2014
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year
Bonds Payable:

Revenue bonds $ 78,086,636 $ - $ (3,817,843) § 74,268,793 $ 4,094,775
Total Bonds 78,086,636 - (3,817.843) 74,268,793 4,094,775
Total Long-Term Debt $ 78,086,636 $ - $ (3,817,843) $ 74,268,793 § 4,094,775
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PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

The following is a summary of bonds and notes outstanding at June 30, 2015 and 2014:

June 30, 2015
Interest
Description o Rate Balance
Revenue bonds:
Safe Drinking Water Bonds (CWFA FY2002) 3.61% $ 1,061,245
Scituate Reservoir Project (PPBA FY 2011) 5.40% 504,774
Safe Drinking Water Bonds (CWFA FY2003) 2.22% -
Safe Drinking Water Bonds (CWFA FY2008) 2.85% 28,181,000
Safe Drinking Water Bonds (CWFA FY2010) 0410% 10 3.14% 8,660,000
Safe Clean Water Bonds (CWFA FY2012) 072% 10 3.26% 2,748,000
Safe Clean Water Bonds (CWFA FY2013) 019% -2.53% - 4,021,000
Safe Drinking Water Bonds (CWFA FY2013) 022% - 2.63% 24,998,000
Safe Drinking Water Bonds (CWFA FY2013) 022% -3.01% 8,000,000

§ 78,174,019

June 30, 2014
Interest
Description Rate Balance
Revenue bonds:
Safe Drinking Water Bonds (CWFA FY2002) 3.61% $ 1,193,199
Scituate Reservoir Project (PPBA FY 2011) 5.40% 635,594
Safe Drinking Water Bonds ({CWFA FY2005) 2.22% 915,000
Safe Drinking Water Bonds (CWFA FY2008) 2.85% 29,617,000
Safe Drinking Water Bonds (CWFA FY2010) 0410% 10 3.14% 9,836,000
Safe Clean Water Bonds (CWFA FY2012) 072% t0 3.26% 2,874,600
Safe Clean Water Bonds (CWFA FY2013) 019% - 2.53% 4,199,000
Safe Drinking Water Bonds (CWFA FY2013) 022% - 2.63% 24,599,000

$ 74,268,793
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-~ 'PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD S
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE § - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
Scheduled principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

ARRA Principal
Principal Forgiveness Interest and Fees Total

Year ending June 30:

2016 $ 4,628,807 §$ (389.485) § 2,209,396 § 6,448,718

2017 3,891,845 (203,506) 2,169,611 5,857,950
2018 3,978,016 (207,283) 2,087,165 5,857,898
2019 3,992,105 (211,265) 1,997,940 5,778,780
2020 5,114,504 (215,814) 1,907,132 6,805,822
2021-2025 20,120,492 (1,163,410) 7,741,578 26,698,660
2026-2030 24,344,000 (1,344,827) 4,503,746 27,502,919
2031-2035 12,104,250 (870,335) 1,737,203 12,971,118

$ 78174,019 § (4,605925) $§ 24,353,771 § 97,921,865

NOTE 6 - TRANSACTIONS WITH CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND

The City of Providence performs various services for the Water Supply Board including
certain accounting, personnel and cash management services and working capital support.
The total billing to the Water Supply Board for services performed amounted to $839,167 for
each of the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. This amount is established by
the City, approved by the Water Supply Board and ultimately approved by the PUC. The
Water Supply Board also provides services to various City funds and departments, the
charges for which have been included as revenue in the accompanying financial statements,
Included within the Due To City of Providence General Fund balance on the statements of
net position are the related balances due for the services described above. The balance also
includes payments for pension and post-employment benefits. The total balance due to the
City of Providence General Fund at June 30, 2015 and 2014 totaled $1,394,423 and
$1,377,649, respectively.

NOTE 7 - LINE OF CREDIT

The Water Supply Board opened a line of credit with Century Bank of $5,000,000 in 2013.
This line of credit is used for infrastructure replacement and renewed annually per the
agreement terms. The balance as of June 30,2015 and 2014 was $0.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Risk MANAGEMENT

The Water Supply Board has a complete comprehensive insurance program protecting all
facilities, employees and liability claims,

The Water Supply Board is subject to various claims and litigation that arise in the ordinary
course of its operations. Legal counsel and management are of the opinion that the Water
Supply Board’s liabilities in such cases, if decided adversely to the Water Supply Board,
would not materially affect the financial statements.

UnIoN CONTRACT

The labor force of the Water Supply Board, with the exception of management, is covered by
a union contract which is effective for the period January 1, 2011 to June 30, 2015. A new
union contract has been negotiated and agreed to by both parties and is effective for the
period of July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018.

LEAD SERVICE REPLACEMENT PROGRAM

The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Lead and Copper Rule (the *“Rule”) require
that systems monitor drinking water at the customer tap. In accordance with the Rule, if after
corrosion confrol optimization is implemented, [ead concentrations exceed an action level of
15 ppb in more than 10% of customer taps sampled, the system is required to replace lead
service lines under its ownership. The regulations require that the utility must replace
annually 7% of the total amount of lead services in the system. In accordance with EPA
requirements, the Rhode Island Department of Health (RIDOH) found that the Water Supply
Board exceeded the lead action level on September 30, 2006 (the date of conclusion of that
monitoring period) and was required to begin the annual replacement of 7% of its 25,600
lead services. Because of lead-time in gearing up for an undertaking of this magnitude,
RIDOH and the Water Supply Board agreed to a compliance schedule that fulfilled the intent
of the regulation whereby 14% of the lead services were to be replaced over the two-year
period ending September 30, 2008 and 7% annually thereafter.

By September of 2010, the Water Supply Board exceeded the lead service replacement
requirement by over 2,200 services and as a result of being approximately one year ahead of
the regulatory required pace, we were informed by RIDOH that the mandated replacements
of lead service could be suspended until October 2011,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENBED JUNE 30, 2615 AND 2014

NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

LEAD SERVICE REPLACEMENT PROGRAM (CONTINUED)

During this period, various concerns were raised about the effectiveness of partial lead
setvice replacements, the persistence of lead levels in the water, and the difficulty of finding
a proven solution for reducing the levels, In June 2012, the RIDOH in concert with the EPA,
agreed to enter into a consent agreement with the Water Supply Board which granted a stay
of the lead service replacement requirement for construction scason 2012. As part of the
agreement, RIDOH and the EPA required that the Water Supply Board convene a panel of
national water quality experts, to include regulators, water professionals, and members of
academia, to recommend studies and / or treatment modifications with the objective of
reducing lead levels in the water. In 2013 the Water Supply Board was granted a stay of the
lead services replacement requirement for the 2013 construction season.

In April 2014, RIDOH granted the Water Supply Board a stay of the lead service
replacement requirement for the 2014 construction season. By consent order Providence is
required to:

1. Continue with the consultation with its expert panel to evaluate corrosion control
treatment in the system.

2. Conduct studies to examine alternative treatment schemes for optimization of
corrosion control.

3. Continue a unidirectional flushing program,

4. Continue to rehabilitate and replace unlined cast iron mains that are usually found to be
problematic in terms of both water quality and delivery capacity.

Even though the lead service replacement program is temporarily suspended, lead services
are still replaced in conjunction with the water main replacement program. Lead services are
also replaced on an ongoing basis where customers are voluntarily replacing their private
side lead services. Lead services continue to be replaced in areas of local and state road
resurfacing projects, and on projects initiated by private or outside entitics. PW’s own crews
replace lead services which are found to be leaking. The replacement work is subject to all
of the FPA regulatory notification, testing, and reporting requirements.
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7 PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
(AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)
LEAD SERVICE REPLACEMENT PROGRAM (CONTINUED)

Since inception of the reporting of the IFR program and the lead service replacement
program to the RIPUC (July 1, 1996), The Water Supply Board has replaced 16,221 lead
services to the end of fiscal year 2015 (June 30, 2015) at a cost of $55,614,291.

NOTE 9 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

The City of Providence has adopted GASB Statement No. 68 Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions. These changes enhance the Plan’s accounting and disclosure for the
pension and expand the Required Supplemental Information (RSI) data with new schedules.
These were issued to improve the financial reporting by state and local government pension
plans. The following provides information required to be disclosed under GASB Statement
No. 68.

Substantially all employees of the Water Supply Board participate in the Employees’
Retirement System of the City of Providence (“ERS” or the “Plan”), a defined-benefit,
single-employer plan. Water Supply Board employees participating in the Plan are eligible
to retire at age 55 if hired prior to July 1, 2004, at age 60 if hired between July 1, 2004 and
June 30, 2009, at age 62 with 10 years of service if hired on or after July 1, 2009 or at any
age after 25 years of service if hired prior to July 1, 1995, or at any age after 30 years of
service if hired on or after July 1, 1995. The total retirement allowance is equal to an
annuity, which is the actuarial equivalent of accumulated contributions at the time of
retirement, plus a pension which when added together either; 1) equals 1/40 of final
compensation for each year of total service up to 20 years and 1/50 of final compensation for
each year of service in excess of 20 years if hired prior to July 1, 1996 or; 2) equals 1/50 of
final compensation for each year of total service credited if hired on or after July 1, 1996.
These benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by City ordinance.

ERS is governed by an Employee Retirement Board provided by the Providence Home Rule
Charter. The ERS consists of elected officials, management and employee representation
and provides for establishing rules and regulations and is responsible for the administration
and operation of the city employee retirement system. The Board has the discretion and
authority to interpret the Plan and to determine the eligibility and benefits of Participants and

~ beneficiaries pursuant to the provisions of the Plan. On all such matters, the decision of a
majority of the then members of the Board shall govern and be binding upon the Employer,
Participants, and beneficiaries. s
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NOTE 9 - BEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Membership of the ERS plan for the City of Providence consisted of the following at June
30, 2015, the date of the latest actuarial valuation:

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefir 3,109
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 428
Active employees 2,986

The Plan’s investment policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and
may be amended by the City. It is the policy of the City to pursue an investment strategy that
reduces risk through the prudent diversification of the portfolio across a broad selection of
distinct asset classes. The pension Plan’s investment policy discourages the use of cash
equivalents, except for lquidity purposes, and aims to refrain from dramatically shifting asset
class allocations over short time spans. The following was the asset allocation as of June 30,
2015:

Target
Asset Class Allocation
Domestic equity 79%
Core fixed income 5%
High yield fixed income 13%
Short-term governmental money market 3%
Total 100%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE § - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015,
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the

measurement:
Inflation 3.5 Percent
Salary increases 3.5 Per year, before reflecting increases due to longevity
Investment rate of return 8.25 Percent, net of pension plan investment expense,

including inflation
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NOTE 9 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended June 30, 2015 the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan
investments, net of pension plan investment expenses, was 5.56 percent. The money-
weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense,
adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

The long-term expected rate of return on Plan investments was determined using a building
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and
by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major
asset class included in the pension plan’s target allocation as of June 30, 2015 are
summarized as follows:

Long-Term Weighted

Target Expected Real Real
Asset Class Allocation  Rate of Return  Rate of Return
Domestic equity 79% 6.23% 4.92%
Core fixed income 5% 1.56% 0.08%
High yield fixed income 13% 3.89% 0.51%
Short-term governmental money market 3% 1.71% 5.00%
Total 100% 5.56%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Class A members and police officers are required to contribute 8% of their salary to the Plan.
Class B members, other than police officers, are required to contribute 9.5% of their salary to
the Plan. Water Supply Board employees are Class A members. The Mayor and City Council
contribute to the Plan at a rate of $350 per year. Additionally, the City shall contribute from
time to time amounts sufficient with the contributions of elected officials to provide the
special pensions granted to them. The Water Supply Board’s contributions to the ERS for the
vears ended June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were $3,212,354, $2,945,209, and $2,792,964,
respectively.

30




v PROVIDENCE WATER SUPPLY BOARD
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NOTE 9 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)
INVESTMENT POLICY

The City policy for pension investments is under the oversight of the Board of Investment
Commissioners (the Board). The Board contracts with an investment advisory firm and
approves any new investment vehicles presented by the consultant. The Board follows all
applicable state statutes and Section 17-189 of the City Ordinance, which states, “The Board
of Investment Commissioners is authorized and empowered to execute the disposition and
investment of the funds which are within its control in any securities and investments as
would be acquired by prudent persons of discretion and intelligence in these matters, who are

seeking a reasonable income and the preservation of their capital.

NET PENSION LIABILITY

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that

date.

The components of the net pension liability of the Retirement System for the Water Supply
Board were as follows:

June 30,2015 June 30,2014

Total pension liability $ 60,131,939 $§ 58,311,217
Plan fiduciary net position $ 16,863,366 $ 16,954,243
Board's net pension liability $ 43,268,573 $§ 41,356,974

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability 28.04% 29.08%
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NOTE 9 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability for the Water Supply Board

Increase {(Decrease)

Total Pension  Plan Fiduciary Net Pension

Liability Net Position Liability
(a) {b) (a) - (b}
Balance at 6/30/14 $58,311,217  $16,954,243  $41,356,974
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 854,182 -- 854,182
Interest 5,509,989 - 5,509,989
Differences between expected and actual experience 79,253 - 79,253
Changes in benefit terms - - -
Changes in assumptions 40,391 - 40,391
Contributions - employer - 3,212,354 (3,212,354)
Contributions - employee - 1,037,505 (1,037,505)
Net investment income - 331,724 (331,724)
Benefit payments, including refunds (4,663,093)  (4,663,093) -
Administration expenses - (9,367 9,367

Other changes -
Net Changes 1,820,722
Balance at 6/30/15 $60,131,939  $16,

(90,877) 1,911,599

863,366  $43,268,573

Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation Date

Actuarial cost method

1-Jul-14

Individual entry age method

Amortization cost method Approximate level percent of payroll-open
Remaining amortization period 26 years
Asset valuation method 5-year smoothed market value

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 8.25%

Inflation rate 3.5% ,

Projected salary increases 3.5% per year before reflecting increases
due to longetivy compensation

Cost of living adjustments No COLA for next 8 vears, 3% thereafter
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NOTE 9 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for Males or
Females, as appropriate, with no assumed pre-retirement mortality or turnover.

Mortality rates for healthy retirees were based on RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality
Table projected 21 years with Scale AA from 2000 for Class A employees and RP-2000
Combined Healthy Blue Collar Mortality Table projected 21 years with Scale AA from 2000
for Class B employees. Disabled retiree mortality rates were based on RP-2000 Combined
Healthy Mortality Table set forward 3 years.

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.25%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed plan member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that the City of Providence’s
contributions will be made at the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

SENSITIVITY OF THE NET PENSION L.IABILITY TO CHANGES IN THE DISCOUNT RATE,

The following presents the net pension liability of the Retirement System, calculated using
the discount rate of 8.25%, as well as what the System’s net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (7.25%) or 1-
percentage-point higher (9.25%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount 1% Increase
(7.25%) (8.25%) (9.25%)
Net pension liablity § 49,571,509 $ 43,268,573 $37,941,170

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the Water Supply Board recognized pension expense of

$3,967,510. At June 30, 2015, the Water Supply Board reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
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NOTE 9 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 63,403 % -
Changes of assumption 32,313 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments 1,060,726 -
Total § 1,156,442 § --

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30:
2016 $ 289,110
2017 289,110
2018 289,110
2019 289,112
Total $ 1,156,442
Payable to the Plan

At June 30, 2015, the Water Supply Beard had made full payment of the required pension
contribution for the year ended June 30, 2015,
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NOTE 10 - POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Water Supply Board follows GASB Statement No. 45 “Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions™.

The Water Supply Board’s Post-Retirement Benefits Program of the City of Providence (the
“Program™} is a defined-benefit, single-employer post-retirement health and life insurance
program. The Program provides lifetime health care and life insurance benefits to retired
employees and their spouses when retirement was effective prior to 1996. Disclosures about
this program, as a whole, are presented in the City of Providence, Rhode Island’s basic
financial statements. As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, the City recorded a liability for unpaid
post-retirement contributions of $241,723,000 and $209,481,098, respectively. Separate
actuarial information related to the Water Supply Board employees is not available.
Accordingly, only disclosures about the Water Supply Board’s participation in the Plan are
presented herein.

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Contribution % of OPER Net OPEB

Ending Cost Made Contributed Obligation
6/30/2015 1,774,000 507,000 28.6% 6,671,000
6/30/2014 1,755,357 437,598 24.9% 5,385,261
6/30/2013 1,305,000 446,423 34.2% 4,052,946

The historical schedules of employer contributions and funding progress for the Program are
included in the City of Providence, Rhode Island’s basic financial statements.

NOTE 11 - RESTATEMENT

The statement of net position has been restated as of June 30, 2014 to reflect the
implementation of GASB No. 68 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The
implementation of GASB Standard No. 68 resulted in an adjustment of the net pension
obligation ending balance at June 30, 2014. The following reflects the effect of
implementation of GASB No.68. Additionally, it was determined that impact fees collected
from the City of Cranston for development of the Western Cranston service area should have
been recognized as revenue in prior periods. These impact fees have been reclassified to
beginning net position at June 30, 2014. The following reflects the implementation of GASB
No. 68, GASB Statement No. 71 and the adjustment to net position:
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NOTE 11 - RESTATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Net Position, June 30, 2014 as originally reported $ 262,461,003
GASB 68 Implementation (41,356,974)
Correction of liabilities 2,009,226
Net Position, July 1, 2004 as Restated $ 223,113,255

NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On December 17, 2015 the Water Supply Board with the City of Providence entered into a
Bond Purchase Agreement with the Rhode Island Infrastructure Bank for bonds (Series
2015A) in the amount of $30 million issued through its Safe Drinking Water State Revolving
Fund. The purpose of this funding was to purchase property at 125 Dupont Drive in
Providence. This property is to be renovated into a central operating facility which will
allow the Water Supply Board to consolidate its operations from two separate facilities
located in Providence and Cranston into one location located in the heart of its service area,

On December 28, 2015 the aforementioned property located at 125 Dupont Drive was
purchased by the Water Supply Board. Renovations will begin in spring 2016.
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SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE
NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIO

Total Pension Liability
Service cost
Interest
Changes of benefit leans
Differences between expected and actual expeience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions
Net Change in Total Pension Liability
Total Pension Liability - Beginning
Total Pension Liability - Ending (a)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer
Contributions - member
Net Investiment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions
Administrative expense

Not Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b}

Net Pension Liability - Ending (a) - (b)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total
Pension Liability

Covered Emiployee Payroll

Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of
Covered-Employee Payroll

Notes:

2015 2014
$ 854,182 % 893.162
5,509,989 4,946,549
79,253 -—
40,391 -
(4,663,093) (4,973,233)
1,820,722 866,478
58,311,217 57,444,739
$ 60,131,939 § 58,311,217
3,212,354 $ 2,945,209
1,037,505 911,508
331,724 1,210,438
(4,663,093) (4,973,233)
(9,367) (71,993)
(90,877) 21,927
16,954,243 16,932,316

$ 16,863,366 5 16,954,243

$ 43,268,573 § 41,356,974

28.04% 29.08%

$ 12,930,447 § 11,900,000

334.63% 347.54%

1.) The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of a 6/30

rreasuremernt date prior to the fiscal year-end

2.) Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years - additional years

will be displayed as they become available.
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SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

20135 2014

Actuarially determined contribution $ 3,212,354 & 2,945,209
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution 3,212,354 2,945,209
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - % --
Covered-employee payroll $ 12,930,447 % 11,900,000
Cantrihntinneg ao o narcentaos of
Contributions as o percentage of

covered-employee payroll 24.84% 24.75%
Notes to Schedule
Valuation date; July 1, 2014

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of July 1, twa years prior to the end of

the fiscal year in which contributions are reported
Methods and asswmptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method . Entry age

Amortization method Level dollar for the 1995 deferral liability and increasing 3.5% per year for the

remajning unfunded liability,

Remaining amortization period Market value assets as reported by the Water Board less unrecognized returns in each of
the last five years plus the discounted contribution paid by the City in the following
year. Unrecognized return is equal to the difference between the actual market return
and the expected market return and is recognized over a five-year period, further

adjusted, if necessary, to be within 20% of the market value,

Inflation 3,5%

Salary increases 3.5% per year before reflecting increases due to longevity compensation.

Investment rate of retum 8.25%, net of pension plan investment and adiministrative expenses, {ncluding
inflation,

Cost of living adjustments 10-year freeze as of January 1, 2013 and 3% thereafter.

Benefit Changes: There have bean no changes in benefit provisions since GASB 67/68 implementafion

Assumption Changes: The actuarial assumptions used reflect the assumptions proposed in the Experience

Investigation for the Five Year Period Ending June 30, 2011 submitted to the Board
on April 2, 2012, with the following exception;
The retirement rate for Class B participants is 100% at age 60,

Notes:

1.} The amounis presented for each fiscal year were determined as of a 6/30

measurement date prior to the fiscal year-end

2.} Schedule is interided to show information for 10 years - additional years
will be displayed as they become avallable.
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SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS

2015

2014

Annual money-weighted rate of return,
net of investment expense 5.56%

Notes:
1.) The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of a 6/30
measurement date prior to the fiscal year-end

2.) Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years - additional years
will be displayed as they become available.
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- MARCUM

ACCOUNTANTS 4 ADVISORS

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors of
ProvidenceWater Supply Board

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the Providence Water Supply Board (the “Water Supply Board”), as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Water Supply Board’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated April 1, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Water
Supply Board’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Water Supply Board’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Water Supply Board’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A maferial weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Qur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Water Supply Board’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

the entity’s mternal control or on comphance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

WMoreun LLF

Providence, RI
April 1, 2016
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